tsamc

State Affordable Housing Corporation

March Board Meeting
To be held at the offices of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
2200 East Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.
Austin, TX 78702

Thursday, March 22, 2018
10:30 a.m.



BOARD MEETING
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
To be held at the offices of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
2200 East Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd
Austin, Texas 78702
March 22, 2018 at 10:30am

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL Bill Dietz
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM Vice Chair

The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the following:

PUBLIC COMMENT

PRESIDENT’S REPORT David Long
Tab A: Homeownership Finance Report
Tab B: Development Finance Report

Tab C: Quarterly Fundraising Report
Tab D: Monthly Financial Reports

ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING:
Tab1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on February 15, 2018.

Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Loan Agreement relating to $1,000,000 Revolving Loan to be made by
Corporation to CDC of Brownsville to be used by CDC of Brownsville to make Single Family Loans pursuant to its
MiCasita Loan Program

Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2018 Texas Foundations Fund Guidelines

Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Approval of Texas Community Capital (TCC)’s Proposed Changes to Bylaws
Related to Increase of the Number of TSAHC-Appointed Board Members and Related Changes to Board Composition.

Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Corporation’s Program Guidelines for the Housing and Economic
Assistance to Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program, a Special Disaster Recovery Grant Program to be Administered in
Partnership with Enterprise Community Partners.

Tab 6 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution to Restate, Ratify, and Affirm the Officers of the
Corporation, and to Designate and Restate the Signature and Approval Authority of Officers of the Corporation.

Tab 7 Closed Executive Session — Discuss real estate matters related to the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property
located at 112 Stanford Drive, Leander Texas (Real Estate Matters — Section 551.072 Texas Government Code)

Tab 8 Closed Executive Session — Discuss legal issues related to mortgage transaction matters with Mortgage Financial Services
company. (Private Consultation with Legal Counsel — Section 551.071 Texas Government Code)

CLOSED MEETING:

Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters — Texas Government Code § 551.071

Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property — Texas Government Code § 551.072

Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation — Texas Government Code § 551.073
Personnel Matters — Texas Government Code § 551.074

Implementation of security personnel or devices — Texas Government Code § 551.076

Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code

ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING:

Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Executive Session



ADJOURN:

Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Laura Ross, ADA Responsible Employee, at 512-477-3560 or
Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate arrangements can be made.

Section 46.035 of the Texas Penal Code prohibits handgun licensees from carrying their handguns at government meetings such as this one. This
prohibition applies to both concealed carry and open carry by handgun licensees. Handgun licensees are required by law to refrain from carrying
their handguns at this meeting.

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a later stated time, if and
to the extent allowed by law. If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting and reconvenes at a later time, the later meeting
will be held in the same location as this meeting. Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation also reserves the right to proceed into a closed
meeting during the meeting in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. If permitted by the Open
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, any item on this Agenda to be discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the
Board (and any other authorized persons) in closed meeting.



President’'s Report



Tab A



X E X A S
State Affordable Housing Corporation

Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance
January 1, 2018 to February 28, 2018

January-18 S 74,575,020 450 54.4% Average Annual Income $57,271
February-18 S 62,515,292 371 45.6% Average Purchase Price $170,827
Totals $137,090,312 821 100% Average Loan Amount $166,980
Lender Closed #of Loans % Total Average Household Size 2
Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation $12,087,409 76 8.8% Average Interest Rate 5.339%
Guild Mortgage Corporation $9,100,282 59 6.6% Program %
Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending $8,984,670 56 6.6% Home Sweet Texas 81.12%
PrimelLending $8,215,154 54 6.0% Homes for Texas Heroes 18.88%
AmCap Mortgage Limited $5,514,886 36 4.0% Allied Health Faculty 0.00%
Academy Mortgage Corporation $5,473,683 30 4.0% Corrections Officer 1.83%
Nations Reliable Lending, LLC $5,407,437 31 3.9% County Jailer 0.12%
Mortgage Financial Services, LLC $5,394,464 31 3.9% EMS Personnel 0.24%
Cornerstone Home Lending, Inc. $5,148,004 31 3.8% Fire Fighter 1.34%
Georgetown Mortgage, LLC $4,797,503 26 3.5% Peace Officer 1.71%
NTFN, Inc. $4,220,544 25 3.1% Professional Nurse Faculty 0.37%
loanDepot.com LLC $4,022,205 19 2.9% Public Security Officer 0.12%
DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $3,233,122 15 2.4% School Counselor 0.24%
Highlands Residential Mortgage $2,914,318 17 2.1% School Librarian 0.00%
HomeBridge Financial Services $2,563,227 16 1.9% School Nurse 0.00%
Hometrust Mortgage Company $2,516,799 17 1.8% Teacher 11.21%
First Choice Loan Services, Inc. $2,468,005 13 1.8% Teacher Aide 0.12%
Mid America Mortgage, Inc. $2,270,390 14 1.7% Veteran 1.58%
Movement Mortgage, LLC $2,213,939 15 1.6%
Ark-La-Tex Financial (Benchmark Mtg.) $2,202,418 12 1.6% Existing 84.29%
Certainty Home Loans, LLC $1,760,087 11 1.3% New 15.71%
Envoy Mortgage $1,559,319 10 1.1% Type of Loan
SWBC Mortgage Corporation $1,537,669 10 1.1% Conventional - Purchase 26.80%
Cardinal Financial Company $1,328,802 8 1.0% FHA - Purchase 70.28%
Wallick and Volk, Inc. $1,286,729 9 0.9% USDA-RHS Purchase 0.61%
American Financial Network, Inc. $1,153,991 6 0.8% VA - Purchase 2.31%
Independent Bank $1,125,800 7 0.8%
FBC Mortgage LLC $1,090,089 6 0.8% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.49%
International City Mortgage, Inc. $1,086,369 6 0.8% Asian/Pacific Islander 1.71%
Gardner Financial Services, Ltd. $1,059,701 6 0.8% Black 13.52%
Primary Residential Mortgage, Inc. $1,056,299 5 0.8% Hispanic 34.10%
Guaranteed Rate $1,031,441 6 0.8% Not Defined 4.02%
New American Funding (Broker Solutions) $1,007,336 7 0.7% Other 0.61%
Sente Mortgage Inc. $972,089 5 0.7% White 45.55%
Security National Mortgage Company $960,024 5 0.7%
Network Funding, LP $956,361 6 0.7% Harris 143
American Mortgage & Equity Consultants $920,782 5 0.7% Tarrant 89
Interlinc Mortgage Services, LLC $908,821 5 0.7% Dallas 89
Pulte Mortgage LLC $888,866 4 0.6% Bexar 64
First Community Mortgage $883,596 8 0.6% Denton 30
CMG Mortgage, Inc. dba CMG Financial $835,849 4 0.6% Collin 28
Cendera Funding, Inc. $800,608 4 0.6% Hidalgo 26
Stearns Lending, LLC $713,417 3 0.5% Travis 23
Right Start Mortgage, Inc. $695,075 4 0.5% El Paso 20
Synergy One Lending, Inc. $584,327 4 0.4% Williamson 19
Gold Star Mortgage Financial Group $577,983 3 0.4% Fort Bend 18
Gateway Mortgage Group, LLC $562,338 3 0.4% Bell 16
Amerifirst Financial, Inc. $517,580 4 0.4% Montgomery 16
Pilgrim Mortgage, LLC $514,409 3 0.4% Kaufman 16
Crosscountry Mortgage, Inc. $488,565 3 0.4% Galveston 15
SFMC, LP (Service First Mortgage) $482,370 4 0.4% Ellis 15
Citywide Home Loans, a Utah Corporation $471,265 3 0.3% Nueces 12
Eagle Home Mortgage, LLC $470,592 2 0.3% Cameron 12
Victorian Finance LLC $461,951 3 0.3% Webb 12
Open Mortgage LLC $439,014 3 0.3% Hays 11
Patriot Mortgage Company $412,154 2 0.3% *Top 20 of all counties statewide. All remaining
Willow Bend Mortgage Company, LLC $401,385 2 0.3% counties served 64 households combined.
Summit Funding, Inc. $400,610 2 0.3%
Pacific Union Financial, LLC $383,705 2 0.3%
Legacy Mortgage, LLC $371,156 4 0.3%




X E X A S
State Affordable Housing Corporation

Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance
January 1, 2018 to February 28, 2018

Castle and Cooke Mortgage $329,913 2 0.2%
Affiliated Bank $294,466 2 0.2%
Churchill Mortgage Corporation $285,750 1 0.2%
LHM Financial Corp., dba CNN Mortgage $273,502 2 0.2%
Bank of England $265,050 1 0.2%
Michigan Mutual, Inc. $260,930 1 0.2%
CLM Mortgage, LLC $244,391 1 0.2%
Happy State Bank $229,612 2 0.2%
LoanStar Home Loans $227,000 1 0.2%
Origin Bank $226,324 1 0.2%
Republic State Mortgage Co. $218,362 1 0.2%
On Q Financial, Inc. $204,427 1 0.1%
The Home Lending Group, LLC $185,478 1 0.1%
Mortgage Solutions of Colorado, LLC $178,703 1 0.1%
Nations Lending Corporation $166,920 1 0.1%
America's Choice Home Loans, LP $163,975 1 0.1%
Peoples Home Equity, Inc. $156,021 1 0.1%
1st Preference Mortgage Corporation $153,939 1 0.1%
BancorpSouth Bank $153,174 1 0.1%
Guaranteed Rate Affinity, LLC $149,246 1 0.1%
Resmac, Inc. $147,283 1 0.1%
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. $136,000 1 0.1%
Rocky Mountain Mortgage Company $129,200 1 0.1%
Southwest Bank $122,996 1 0.1%
University Lending Group, LLC $108,007 1 0.1%
Inter National Bank $97,000 1 0.1%
Texas Bank Mortgage Company $75,660 1 0.1%
Grand Total $137,090,312 821 100%




i E X A S
State Affordable Housing Corporation

Mortgage Credit Certificate Program
January 1, 2018 to February 28, 2018

Month Closed  #of Loans % Total
January-18 $11,706,963 69 61% Total Amount Originated $19,259,147
February-18 $7,552,184 45 39% Average Annual Income $53,855
Totals $19,259,147 114 100% Average Purchase Price $174,986
Average Loan Amount $168,940
Lender Closed # of Loans % Total Average Household Size 2
Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending $1,781,163 10 8.8% Average Interest Rate 5.173%
PrimeLending $1,471,380 7 6.1% Program %
First Choice Loan Services, Inc. $1,181,721 6 5.3% Home Sweet Texas 80.70%
DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $1,012,809 5 4.4% Homes for Texas Heroes 19.30%
AmCap Mortgage Limited $919,759 6 5.3% Allied Health Faculty 0.00%
Hometrust Mortgage Company $875,586 6 5.3% Corrections Officer 4.39%
Guild Mortgage Corporation $845,631 5 4.4% County Jailer 0.00%
Nations Reliable Lending, LLC $835,019 6 5.3% EMS Personnel 0.00%
Academy Mortgage Corporation $703,763 4 3.5% Fire Fighter 0.00%
Envoy Mortgage $635,092 4 3.5% Peace Officer 1.75%
Victorian Finance LLC $605,306 4 3.5% Professional Nurse Faculty 0.00%
Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation $596,740 3 2.6% Public Security Officer 0.00%
American Mortgage & Equity Consultants $572,448 3 2.6% School Counselor 0.00%
Highlands Residential Mortgage $566,056 3 2.6% School Librarian 0.00%
SWBC Mortgage Corporation $540,839 3 2.6% School Nurse 0.00%
Wallick and Volk, Inc. $536,028 4 3.5% Teacher 13.16%
loanDepot.com LLC $521,559 2 1.8% Teacher Aide 0.00%
Georgetown Mortgage, LLC $502,575 3 2.6% Veteran 0.00%
Cardinal Financial Company $402,100 2 1.8%
Movement Mortgage, LLC $400,510 3 2.6% Existing 78.07%
International City Mortgage, Inc. $399,902 2 1.8% New 21.93%
Open Mortgage LLC $319,014 2 1.8% Type of Loan
Independent Bank $310,218 2 1.8% Conventional - Purchase 26.32%
Cornerstone Home Lending, Inc. $286,150 2 1.8% FHA - Purchase 73.68%
Sente Mortgage Inc. $259,403 2 1.8% USDA-RHS Purchase 0.00%
Mortgage Financial Services, LLC $227,950 1 0.9% VA - Purchase 0.00%
Pacific Union Financial, LLC $218,847 1 0.9%
Pilgrim Mortgage, LLC $201,188 1 0.9% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.00%
The Home Lending Group, LLC $185,478 1 0.9% Asian/Pac Isle 3.60%
Castle and Cooke Mortgage $155,138 1 0.9% Black 17.20%
Happy State Bank $127,595 1 0.9% Hispanic 41.70%
Synergy One Lending, Inc. $127,546 1 0.9% Not Defined 2.06%
Legacy Mortgage, LLC $126,100 1 0.9% Other 2.74%
Primary Residential Mortgage, Inc. $125,450 1 0.9% White 32.71%
Affiliated Bank $124,699 1 0.9%
Right Start Mortgage, Inc. $122,735 1 0.9% Harris 30
Interlinc Mortgage Services, LLC $121,164 1 0.9% Bexar 13
Gardner Financial Services, Ltd. $119,500 1 0.9% Dallas 9
New American Funding (Broker Solutions) $115,454 1 0.9% Travis 7
Certainty Home Loans, LLC $79,532 1 0.9% Hldalgo 6
Total Committed $19,259,147 114 100% Tarrant 6
Fort Bend 6
Denton 4
Williamson 4
Galveston 4
Hays 3
Kaufman 3
Brazoria 2
El Paso 2
Bell 2
Ector 1
Ellis 1
Hunt 1
Potter 1
Cameron 1

*Top 20 of all counties statewide. All remaining
counties served 8 households combined.



Tab B



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Development Finance Programs Report
March 2018

Affordable Communities of Texas Program (ACT)

Program staff visited several project sites over the past month. Jo Keene visited our local partner in Port
Arthur, Legacy CDC, stopped in Pearland to inspect repairs on an ACT-VET home, and traveled to San
Antonio to investigate a four unit rental property acquisition opportunity. Dave and Jo also visited
Wichita Falls to inspect the rehabilitation of 2936 Lavell, and stopped in Fort Worth to look at
neighborhood conditions and development opportunities at our Riverside Neighborhood assets.

Dave also joined other TSAHC staff at the TACDC conference in early March, visiting with several of our
existing partners to discuss ongoing projects, and to meet potential new partners across the state.

In regards to ACT production stats, there are currently nine homes under contract to buyers and 31
under construction. The majority are NSP properties.

Two new acquisition opportunities have also been presented to us in the past few weeks. As mentioned
above, Jo visited a small (four unit) rental complex in San Antonio in late February. We have also been
offered as a donation a vacant single-family lot in Paris, Texas. Staff will be going through due diligence
activities to determine if either of these opportunities are feasible for TSAHC’s programs.

Here is a summary of this month’s portfolio numbers:

Program OF::‘::)tI:::-K;,azsoolf7 Acquired Sold Pc:rrt::‘i:) Current Portfolio Value
ACT Land Bank 57 0 2 55 $690,209.00
ACT Land Trust 1 0 0 1 $650,000.00
Texas NSP 204 0 0 204 $2,867,583.10
Veteran's Initiative 1 0 0 1 $33,210.00
Totals 263 0 2 261 $4,241,002.10

Texas Housing Impact Fund

In December 2017, TSAHC's Board approved a loan to Accessible Housing Austin! in the amount of
$695,000 for the AHA! at Briarcliff Apartment project. Last month the Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs (TDHCA) approved a $1.5 million deferred forgivable loan to AHA! for the same
project. AHA! hopes to close on the TDHCA and TSAHC loans in mid-July, with construction completion
in Q2 of 2019.

Our legal counsel has requested that a resolution be presented to the Board this month for the MiCasita
loan, previously reviewed and awarded by TSAHC in December of 2016. Although no changes to the
terms and conditions of the loan have been made, the loan documents have been updated so counsel
believes there is a need to reaffirm the Board’s previous award at this time.

Multifamily Bond Program

Multifamily bond developers are beginning to work on potential deals for 2018. The deadline for 9%
housing tax credit applications was March so bonds are now the focus for many projects that didn’t



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Development Finance Programs Report
March 2018

make the cut. The developer of the Beckley Townhomes project, Dominium, which was induced by
TSAHC in December 2017 has begun moving forward with an application the Texas Bond Review Board
for a reservation of bond volume cap. Three other potential projects have been discussed with staff and
one application was received on March , for the Walnut Creek Apartments, a rehabilitation project
located in Austin, Texas. Staff will bring an inducement resolution to the Board in April, if the application
meets our threshold criteria.



Tab C



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
2018 Quarterly Fundraising Report

March 14, 2018

Home Buyer Programs/Financial & Housing Education

Funder Amount Status Notes
2018 Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas $5,000 |Awarded In Kind Donation of Food and Meeting Space
Bank of America $3,200 |Received Received award in November 2017.
BBVA Compass $5,000 |Received Received award in July 2017.
A community development loan to be used to fund down payment assistance for home buyer
Frost Bank $4,000,000 |Received programs.
2018-2019 Texas Financial Education Endowment $40,000 |Declined Submitted request in September 2017 and notified in October 2017.
JPMorgan Chase Foundation $10,000 |Received Submitted request in November 2017 and received award in March 2018.
Insperity $5,000 |Pending Submitted request February 2018
Wells Fargo Housing Foundation $15,000 |Pending Submitted request January 2018
Submitted initial proposal in March 2018 to administer additional down payment assistance
Wells Fargo Priority Markets TBD|Pending through home buyer programs.
Frost Bank $5,000 [Pending Submitted request February 2018
Housing Connection Sponsorships $7,600 |Received Online campaign donations received in December 2017
Total Received/Awarded $4,030,800
Total Requests Pending $25,000
Texas Foundations Fund
Funder Amount Status Notes
Request submitted in December 2017. Funding will support a joint grants program between TSAHC
and Enterprise Community Partners. Total request amount is $1.1 million, with $500,000 to be
Rebuild Texas Fund $500,000 |Pending administered by TSAHC and $600,000 to be administered by Enterprise.
Total Requests Pending | $500,000




Texas Housing Impact Fund

Funder Amount Status Notes

Structured as a five year community development loan to be used for the Texas Housing Impact
Texas Capital Bank $750,000|Received Fund.

Grant to support Texas Housing Impact Fund. 3-year grant totaling $22,500, with $7,500 received in
Texas Capital Bank $7,500|Received 2017, $7,500 in 2018, and another $7,500 to be received in 2019.

Requesting a five year PRI to support the Texas Housing Impact Fund to fund affordable single
Austin Community Foundation $250,000|Pending family and multifamily housing in East Austin and Del Valle areas.

First requested in July 2016, may be structured as a grant or program-related investment. Last
Meadows Foundation $250,000 |Pending discussion with Foundation staff indicated they would consider request in early 2018.

Have had initial conversation about potential EQ2 investment. Have provided requested
BBVA Compass Bank $1,000,000 |Discussion documentation
Total Received $757,500
Total Requests Under Discussion $1,000,000
Total Requests Pending | $500,000 |

Affordable Communities of Texas (ACT) Program

Funder Amount Status Notes

Submitted request in March 2018 for a gift card to purchase appliances for an ACT property in
Lowes $2,000 |Pending Wichita Falls.
Total Requests Pending | $2,000 |

Summary

Total Received/Awarded | $4,788,300
Total Pending $1,027,000
Total Under Discussion $1,000,000




Tab D



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (unaudited)
As of January 31, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accrued Interest
Custodial Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments, at Fair Market Value
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Revenue
Accrued Interest Receivable
Loans Receivable, Current Portion
Notes Receivable, Current Portion
Down Payment Assistance, Current Portion
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets:

Noncurrent Assets
Loans Receivable, Net of uncollectible amounts of $26,923
Notes Receivable
Investments, at Fair Market Value
Mortgage Servicing Rights, Net of Accumulated Amortization of $2,474,697
Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $747,216
Owned Real Estate, Federal & Other Programs Net of Amort $436,299
Down Payment Assistance
Restricted Investments Held by Bond Trustee, at Fair Market Value

Total Noncurrent Assets:

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 8,318,597

2,048,350
59,776
110,803
1,344,956
51,418
115,093
66,551
174,810
7,652,174
67,146

20,009,674

519,072
5,868,545
6,851,053

253,364
1,288,318
9,624,090

36,029,108

60,433,550

$ 80,443,224

(continued)



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued (unaudited)
As of January 31, 2018

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 290,182
Notes Payable, Current Portion 1,100,306
Custodial Reserve Funds 110,803
Other Current Liabilities 2,051,357
Payable from Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee:
Bonds Payable, Current Portion 740,000
Accrued Interest on Bonds 516,330
Total Current Liabilities: 4,808,978
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes Payable 5,467,366
Revenue Bonds Payable 34,241,052
Due to Federal Programs 2,230,464
Unearned Revenue 204,575
Total Noncurrent Liabilities: 42,143,457
Total Liabilities: 46,952,435

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue 197,405

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 197,405

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets 1,288,318
Restricted for:
Debt Service 2,639,852
Other Purposes 15,493
Unrestricted 29,349,721

Total Net Position: $ 33,293,384




TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (unaudited)
for the 5 months ending January 31, 2018

Operating Revenues

Interest and Investment Income $ 925,785
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 546,109
Single Family Income 3,584,004
Asset Oversight and Compliance Fees 92,485
Loan Servicing Fees 33,034
Multifamily Income 129,958
Land Bank Income 192,030
Public Support

Federal & State Grants 6,438

Contributions 10,593
Other Operating Revenue 413,261

Total Operating Revenues $ 5,933,697

Operating Expenses

Interest Expense on Bonds and Notes Payable $ 622,242
Salaries, Wages and Payroll Related Costs 1,015,967
Professional Fees and Services 189,460
Amortization 99,064
Office and Equipment Rental and Maintenance 38,331
Travel and Meals 37,391
Depreciation 105,813
Program and Loan Administration 507,027
Grant Expenditures 6,473
Foundation Fund Grants 185,500
Other Operating Expenses 188,069
Total Operating Expenses $ 2,995,337

Net Income 2,938,360
Total Net Position, Beginning 30,355,024

Total Net Position, Ending $ 33,293,384




VY ;

SILVIODSSY ¥ NOSHYILLVY

8107 ‘1€ Arenuef
310d3Y] JUSUSIAU] A[YIUOTA

uonelodion BuIsSNOH 9|gepIoyY d1B1S

O§es)




100y amog

‘! ory gy £ KK 0 5 e o AR 0 st oonan 1) 3 st
fALA 9102 g0z bi02 £l
20 o g ey %G OBg WL ey QG WL e MO 035w N g d Ul e

L18S¢ G1/1E/En Lo mo)
WL aferny
1E9V& WAOE/TT w0
(07 TR 1Y)l T

uoieznn Anoeden

ok

sjey Juswhodwaun sn

'sqol aiow pue 3uun)aenuew sn sayuny SuiBeincoua

S1IBLY PLIOM BU) U 2AIINR0LIOD PUB DA[IDRINIE 210W W03 SLOdX3 JNo
S3IDUILIND JYI0 O ABIDY 'SN DY) 0} SIY3USQ SBY ISIN03 JO JE(|OP JaNEIM
1IBYMIWOS ¢ "AUS.4INI UMO 1Y) BulAlaapun S3IDUALIND JO 13YSB 11aY) ul 3njea
3AIE|3S |BAS SJUSAIdBI JSM BY) 3DUIS A[BNI[UR S 3AOW B YINS ‘Inq ‘padwn(
puog-] ay) pue $310U §M JO aseyaund s31 gund Aewl euiys 18yl paluly

Jowiny y 193JeU JBY) Paju pue pa|ques ulsg sey edag Aunsesd) 3yl woly
a3essaw ay) ydnoyije sejjop Jayeam Allydis e Aq paisooq aq pnoa suodx3

-aead 2 u) uojsuedxa Addns

1598319 51 L3S SBY LIIYM 10 51 uoieul uo Ind aanedau y ‘umop aelsne
ay1 Buynd suodxs pue sauojuaaul Ajuc yum {99°TT) Suipuads |ziuapisas sem
se (%8°¢) dn sem uondwnsuos [euosiad "Yiduass peoaq siyz $373)J24 OS(e 44O

“Yiuow siyy dn aue s3jes asnoy Buipuad uaaz ‘sqol pauieisns Jo aJuapluoI
40 13A3| Y31y e 0] syeads INg FWOSLIOM SABMIE S| SEUIARS UO UMOPMEIP 31|

“‘Buimoud aie siepiacad a31nuas pue swy Budnpoad
spood 2yl 4109 ‘s pue uojieodsues) ‘Sunndenuell ‘apes ‘Aasnpu
uippng ay3 w dn Bumoys Awouoss sy ssolde sieadde yimosd qog

"%t MOj2q 231e) JuswAojdwaun 3yl e} pue Y38uans / 107 JO UOENUIIUO)

2 0} pe3| Aew uiojal xe) 3yl Aq paesausd saxiy afem [euomppy (ssa| Juiaes
pue) asow Buipuads s| oym JBWNSUSY DY) paunds AlU|BLIBI SeY )| "UoLIR|jul
ojul paay Aew yaym saBem J1aydiy o3 spes| Jua|el 1eyl Joj uoniadwos Suy
15NQOY '54340m pauiesy 1o) JuAad |Ins aue s1aAoidwa pue dn a.e saliejes
pue s38epn "YImoJ3 pue uoRe(u ‘s)jolAed 3q 01 3nURUOI 510108y ASY Y]

"ALi0u023 3y} Jo uoisurdxa plos e Jnoyanoayl S100Ys

U313 Jo PI3ly B MOYS SI01EJIPUI JO SdueJapucdald e pue yoog a9iag 5 pad
3yl "254n02-40 08 J0U PINOYS UONEZIBWICU ADES]S PUE MO[S 01 UOIDRJIP

Y1 Ing ‘||2MO4 J1ey? 0} UI|[IA JEYD WOJJ UOIISURL] YI00WS Jiey) e osje

s| sjeod 1snlpe Jo wuyye 01 Pasn Ajjewuou st yaym Sunaaw Alenuer JNOd YL

jJeaA uonIgje

€ U1 A||e103dsa— 19A3MOY SIUALIBINUS PUE 2IMINISeJUl UIIMIS] 3[11eq
paouejeq e Buiaq dn pus Aew 3 ‘uonesdiwug o1 Suipad 3q3p 243 Woly peaye
53]11eq mau pue adeid Ul WIojal xey yim Jydinods ayl oyu paddals yiuow siyy
sey Astjod |easy ‘uonezijewsou spiemol Aemuyled jonpoab, e SUIBISNS aAIASAY
|EIBRI BY) SE BWIY] B UIRWISL ||1M 5318 MO| A|JBILICISIY BIYM PUY "SND0)
ulew S13)JEW Y uadg sey Axjod Aejauow ‘sieah uanas ysed ayl 1oy




e e nf.._.._._..ua. ApPa0i P

LTOE

ELEiTS

sloz

oty A 0 B

rioT

Lae'¥

sayent Buipadaud woyy aBueyd Wwadlay 4ao |eay

N0

MOfS

0} YNIUYHP 39 |IIM JUSWUONAUD YImosF siyy u sBuiuied aayisod Ajsnondiquieun
pue yimoad jeqo|d paziuosyauAs 3yl Ing sysiy 310351y 38 Apeasje 1500q

13}4BW X015 € Se U553 ABLL UONIENSaL-3P PUE SIND Xe) 93I0dI0D S, W04 XE

(vt0z/Y

23uls s33e4 353431y S JE SPURYS MOU JBSA-OT L) suSiaianos Jayio 1suiele
Bnjea aAlelal §,3AIN0 3yl U0 Juapuadap — Jaylng s31L) 3SIEL PINGD YIIYM

aaInd ayy 03 Ajddns ppe [im syl ‘suonisod AJunsas 30 ul Ind Jjays Jo Led se
Aunseas) Aq suoiyisod awos jo Buuniew /aseajas ays yum Suoly s|g-1 [Im se
YIuow B ucjiq g$ Ag 35B.10U) ||IM 5310U JBRA € pUB Z Y] "SIIIAIDS [BIIOS 1310
pue AJundas |e1305 ‘a1epay Wi sjeuoys 198png yolew o1 5SRI0 UI UoI|Iq 995
Aq eseasaul |im suoone (Jeak Og 03 §) sauINseas] p3IeEp U 00T A0UIS 1500
15414 531 Uy J€3A sy suondne sy Suisessou g |im AInseasj 150D e e Sawod
SjusWBALdW) 31NINAISEIUN PAPBIU YINWI 10} sueld 3Y) PUB W0 Xe) aY)

j¥eyi st pood MoK jSaayuim)

3344 saaAo|dwa sy 3uinB s) spueag ssajsoH uaala pue sadem Jaydiy Jo paisooq
aneY xJpad4 pue Lewes ‘ajddy “saBem pue sydaydded w 1aedwi J13y) uMmoys
ApeaJje aaey swojas 3yl Ajleanysawog ‘sJe||op sn aiewledal o) paudisap

2JE Y2ILM SWI0JRI Xe SN Y] A P3133YJe S0 OS|E |jim SI3YIeLL [BUOIIeUIaIU)|

‘SN 2Y) IPISING $1ASew ayy 03 uondo ue Juiaeald $ALBI J13Y) ISIBL PINOYS YHYM
UCHEZIBLICU SPIBMO] JIOM 0] BNUIUOD JAAIMOY [e13U35 Uy SHueq |e1JuII

ay) "Beip 01 SaNUIUOD pue Inopuey xau 118Y3 138 01 Ajuewd g saunseaw
Ajaasne BUOIIPPE 3Wos passed SBY 328340 "AJUIELIZOUN SPPE YdlyMm 1xa.g
Funuoadn 51ay3 10y M 3yl Ag pred aq 01 SUoISSaU0 paainbal ay) Suiddn s 3
ayl wawAojdwaun ydiy Ajusoqqnis pue uonepyul Sumols yum ajpany olew

€ sy 923 3yl Inq SN 2431 yum uoje saje. st IsIeS 0 ISIN0I UO ||1IS SI BPEUED

"SALOUCID |BUCHIEUIZIU) UQ puadap 23133p WIBLID B 0] PUE 13§21 |5 ||IM
JAINI AY} JO UOIIEII BY]} PUE SIYIY 3Y3 NG "%S5Z'7 0) 2181 14FUIaA0 Yy e}
(IIm JEBA SIY3 S331y 221yL "SaNUNUOD YIMOIT sIy3 J) 2|qeuoseas aq o) sseadde
YIIUM 320UWWOT 3Y) WO} YIIEIA Ui 3N %SZ 0 B Ul Ying Apedlje sey JayJew
8yl wBipods ayy U uiewal |IIM JWOL YL HOO[INO BANSOU |RIFAG 343 YUAR

saguey) J1ISaWo(q pue jeucijeulalu)




IAQE 0} SpUN4 poo — 8AIND PISIA find - SOIBY Lo JO puT

1408 IAo1 JAG 14T JAT oug owg spunyd pag

i - — 9%00'0

9050

91-39(] %001
Li-1e 1
u
Lr-unf ————— - 909K a8
FAQ R s 2
%002 d
=]
d

%05z

-+ %00t

- - L 9%0%€

‘34mny ay3 u) uonisod SIY3 JuIyl-a1 Aewl ABY L {3IBLINSA JAIU 1M UOILEYUI JBY) BUIllaq a1e oym sioisaaul Suo| axeaipu; pua Suo| wiogqgnis syl

-adueys Ajpaignopun [im syl Ajjeucileulaiu

dn Buinow ase sajes JeYl MON “J3JE3]2 saWod2g 1n3aid 3Y3 |UN YSED POy SI03SIAUI SE AJuielsadun [eajod-038 pue [e3jwouoda jeqo@ Suinupuod

(q) pue saaneusdy|e |euoneusalul uey) 1aysiy ale pa4 3yl Aq Pal SN 3yl Ul s31e (B) $123)J3J YIUOW-33IY) 343 03 SPUny JYBILIBAC WO UDISIAUI YSIIS 3Y] -
‘{suonde Buisea jewou Joj woos SuIAI) 34n3Ny 3Y) U) INII0 PINOYS LOISSIIBI

€ J1 uoiysn AJRI3UOW B 3}e3.D 0} 3AISIP 1) YIm Fuoje Awouode 3y Ul Y13ualls 9yl Jo MIIA §,pa4 Byl AQ UBALP AlJED[I S) pUS LIOYS BY) Ul BAOW Y] -
‘|9A) 2unp s3I asoqe Aly3is Ajuo Ajuiogqnis sAels pua Buo| ayl Inq dn paaow aaey s3lel

HOYs 3y1 TOT Ui S3WI 310w 93143 (e11u3lod € ).l spung paj ay3 3asiel 01 12511 uo aqg 03 sJeadde pue JaqLIRIBQ Ul SIIEI PASIES AIISTY (RIIPD4 AU SY «

"8TOT OIUI panuluol sey aAaInd (daals $53|) Buiualie)) e 10 LIBDUCI BY| »

Y ﬂ acuejeg 1ySLy putq 03 9188n.435 sajey

"




o\.
%S00 %000 A

%81°6T
sajoN Aduaby

%960
$a2

"%ST T BuIp|iA
s1 01j0410d UnoA Jo uoiuod yses-uou 3y

‘uoos 3ulwod spuny xe} 3yl
Joj uejd pue sazue|eq Ysed aanpaJ 03 3wy i )

‘syueq 2yl aPISINO 3|ge|ieae 3soy) SNSIIA
$33e4 YOI Y} M3IA3L ISNW 3UOCAIRAB pue
s}sodap Mau Ul palsasazuiun ulewal syuey

's|100d 2yl 1534 ||IMm JEIA SUO PUOAIQ

sajey uaded |ePRIBWLWOD 0] SSIIVE YIUM
250U 10§ Af|e12adsa a|qe|ieae die SAIIRLIDYE
WLI3) LIOYS PUB 3A0W S,pa4 3yl yimdn
AA0W 0] 3NUITUOD S3IBJ WIB-HoYS AJBA 3Y]

"'SUOINPUOD

12JeW 3j13e|0A 0) ISn(pe 123394 ued oojuod
palisianp e asnedaq Ayunlew 38esane
pa}joi3u03 e pue uonedlo||e }asse jewndo

104 0ljoJ10d JNOA SM3IIASI A[JURISUOCD iRd

8107 ‘Lg Arenuer Jo sy

0110J140d JNOA




S'L 2 Hop Leday
0°E L{LNd 4Hd) WNd
dY

H¥S.1 ollopod

SOTF7E

t¥rl - BLOZISLIZO -8B Uny

Ot:pL BLOZ/SL/Z0 HYSL L3S paiepdn eleq
8L0Z/1£/10-810Z/10/1.0 pouad Bunioday

90140 [BIDUBULY JOIND "UWS epullaly

*Apoq BuiwiascB sy) 0} ainsopsip |y spiacid o) oijoguod sy Jo suonejueseidai oiydelb se [jam sk ‘podas uanoesues e pouad 2y} Jo pus ay) Jo4 Hodal AIOJUBALI PANIBISP B 'MBIAIOAD
Arewwns Juswabeuew e apnjoul spodas sy "SIUBWISAAUS JO oojHod s,uonesodios auyy uium Alanoe pue uonisod ay) Jo uonelodios BLISNOH ajqepioyy MBS sexa) ay) Jo Apoq Guluiasob ayy uuoui
Any o1 Japue ui 1oy syl Aq pannbal Jou uoneuuojul [eluaweiddns Jago osje suadas sy 19522 9p07) ),A0E) SEXS L} 12W JUSLISEAU) SPUnY JGNd SUI UM S0UBPICIOE U) paagns aie spodal Buimoyoy ay)

00'EL9'DL

9jeq 0L Je9 ) [easiy

§5'096'G

leap juauny

Buipug yuow )£ Aenuep

sBuniey ey

SjUBLWIISIAL|
6lTL [:73 €8l %00°001 09°980°'6Z¢°0L L0'sgL'ELr'oL 09°980'6Z1'01
00070 L L or'vlL Z9°0LL'808'L Z90LLBOS L Y0 B0S L $JUN02DY Hueg
00v'0 26 $9¢ 96’0 §8°102°001 $8°L0Z 004 587102001 Allenuuenbrow 15318 - 5,00
0sSt0 I 1 05'0 rroLZ'2S P22 P OLE TS SIUNODIY MON/SPUNS WIW
EIe'L L b §t'L 58129161 SELLTISL S8'LL9'L51 pung Asuop-selleq a1Hd
sl l 1 Op'Es LZTSHRLLY'9 IZTSra’LLe'e LTGrE'LIe'e 21907
LL6S 501'9 ava'g SO0 15°9¥0'S ¥0'519°G L6°900'S (vWND) senuades yBnouwyL sseq
0BLL o8¢ £16 81'61 00°000'000'7 0005’86 1 00'000'000'2 sellunoag uadnog Aausby |esapad
‘anb3 gog Raney ule] ollojuod anjep anjep anjea SJUBLISIALY
LA o) sheg 0% Aoogd 19318l ied

8102 ‘L€ Asenuer
. Alewwng oljo)iog

SPi8L XL Wisny

§61 aNng

YB4ON 'S LOB
$9)e|0085Y B UosIaNed

juawabeue oljojuod

BuisnoH ajqepioyy ajelg sexa)

BILVIINSTY § NOSVILIVd




SE'L 1A podey
0Z¢{1S Sud) LS
dv

HVSL ononiod

057l - 8LOZ/SLIE0 -8ieQ uny

6L 6LZL 00001 09'980'6Z¥°0L 09°980'6Z¥°0L [']% abessny pue e10)
L 000°0 ¥0°0 05°289'F 05289 t Eong
1 000’ $OD 0% 280y 05 Zed'y ! SIuNooY yueq
209 - obaeg sjjap :puny
6L 0zZ'L 9666 oLPOr'PIr'OL 0LPOr'YZrI0L [ E10gng
26 00¥ 0 96’0 §8'102004 $8°10Z°001 L AenuuesApibow jsasau) - S.Q0
L zzsL or'Ed I1TSYELL'9 LZ5r2'119'9 L 21907
S0L'% LL6'S SO0 15'90'G 159v0'6 L [YWND} saninosg ubnoiyy sseq
aBE o8l BL'SL 00'000°000€ 00°000'000'2 z sajunaag uedneg Asuaby jesapay
L £LEL SP) S8'LL9°LGL S'LLO'LSL L puny Asuop-se(led §IH4
L 000°0 ZrplL ZLBZYE0SL ZLAZP'E0S L L SIUNOX0Y Yueq
b 0510 a5 PrOLZ'ES FFOLZ'ZS z SIUNOIYY MON/SPUNL NN
SIUIWISBALY [RIBUSS) puny
AJLNEWN 0} S9F WLA 01]0jH0g anjea yooq anjep sJUaIsaA| adA) Ayjundag
shAeq obeloay obBelaay ICLA Jey Jo 1aquiny
pund Aq padnoig
. _ 810Z ‘L€ Avenuer
m%w,__ :Mh unsny adA] Aq Arewwing
24OV 'S L6 BuIsSNoH s|qepioyy 3jels sexa)

SOIRIN0SSY B Uosiane

FALYIIDRIV § NRBNALLYY



SE'L #ap Loday
L2 lid Judi i

05'%L = LOZIS1/Z0 1218 UNY

dv
HYS1 olojuod
8L 0zl £0Z'1 £5°Z0S'80¥"0) 0L'POF'PZY'0L ok rOr'vFZroL afesony pue sjusunseau) 230
3 00070 0000 TLRIY'E0S') TVEZP'E05') ZLeZY'E0s' L abigiaay pue |ej0Iqns
i ZL'8Tr'e0s’t ZL'HTV'ENS’L ZL'BZP'E0S"L OLOZ/SO/E0 Bunjoay? yueg 1soi4 69 L9665£165
SHUNOITY yueg
6 o0¥0  SeE0 S8'L0Z'001 SE'LOZ'00L S8'L0Z'001 abeiany pue [ejo1Qng o
26 8LOZ/P0/S0  Q0P'0 PGE'D oor'n §8°.0Z'00L S8°L0Z'001 SE'L0Z'00t ZLOEZH0/S0 9 vueg |epde) sexa) 612 SSP0009LOY
AllenuueApbiow ysasejuy - 5,09
L osv0  tvro ProLz'zs PP OLZ'TS ¥roLz'Is abesany pue [ejojgng
I osy'o 24 ] QsP'0 Y OLTES ProLZTS vy OLZ'ZS SLOZ/\ 260 NUEE [EUONEN BaN20ID Sl LE1160E
L 002’0 i61°0 [ 000 000 ov'e 0L0Z/0Z/01 W yueq |eidesd unshy €8 9051009
SINGIIY MON/SPUNd WIN
1 1L’} S6Z°) S81LI9'IS| S8°LL9'15) §8°1L49'151 sbesoay pue |ejoigng
L ZIEL PeT'L EIEL SE°LIG'LGE SO L49'16L S8LL9'LGL 900Z/L0/60 pund 13eW A3U0W gHS z008 566666666
pung Aeuon-seqieq g1Hd
3 FAA 051 LT'SPELLY'9 LTSYE'LLY'S 1T'SPE'1199 abesoay pue [101gng
3 zZes°tL 10s'L Zze'L LT5PeLI9e LT6KB 149’9 LESEE'LLSY GLOZGLILL i (¥4 oas
20901
S0L'9 L26'S 688'S P0S18°S 15'9P0'S 15950 sfesony pue jej0IQNg -
SOL'9  ¥YEOZIOZIOL  LL6S [ 066'S POGLES 15'9¥0°S 15°9P0'S LLOZL LD aBIn £91886 29 0oL €24L0T9E
(YWND) sanundag ybnoiy) ssed
S8¢ o8kl noﬂ.— 00°0EE°E86°L 00°000'000'Z ao.ooo_oem abesany pue |ejoigng N
895 6L02/ET/B0  ¥LT'L 9cZ'L 0otL 00'86L°486 00°000°000' 1 00°000'000"L 910Z/eZ/80 BION [1BD DWTHS goz ENEVOPELE
£0Z BL0Z/ET/IB0  $80°1 690°L 0oL’ 00°'ZEL'966 00°000°000'L 00°000'000°1 910Z/E2/80 3joN ([l IWTHL BOZ BADVOPELE
sanunaag vodnoy Asuaby [esopay
Aumew aeq 59¢ 09t aey anjep 18Rl anjep Jed anfeA Noog a1eg | # jusu b dIsn2
ol sfeq Aumew  WLA WLA pUCYTT, ) aseyming
[
8102 ‘L€ Aenuer

k8L X1 ‘uisny
S61 |ng
PEdOW 'S LO6

$AJBI00SSY B LOSIANEY

pung Aq sjuawsaAuj
SIUBLLISIAU| [BI2UID - TYYINITD pung
Buisnoy ajqepioyy ajels sexa|

SILVITDREY § MDEVILLYL



§'€'L 18p wodoy
S YAEREEENE]
dv

HYS1 olopuod

05-¥1 - §LOZ/S1/20 -e1eQ LNy

L 0000 00070 05'Za9'y 05°Z89'F 05°289'F aBeiaay pue suswisaAy) 1oL
i 6000 0000 05789'¢ 05°Z89'y 05°Z89'F ebeiaay pue |ejoigng
3 05ee9 0SZ89't 05289y 900Z/10/60 Bsiy woug-uop ofsey spapm 100 VYE6666666
SJUN022Y yueg
lQumew aeg S9¢ 08g @y anjep IHIBK anpep Jeg Bhep Yooy aeg 1anss) # Judunsaau| dISNJ
o) sheq SHumew NWLA LA jusLIng aseyoing
810Z ‘L€ Aenuer

z abey

pung Aq sjuawi)saau|
209 - obie sjjap - ST13IM pung



§'¢'L 8 Loday
02z {Dv dyd) ov
dv

€571 - BLOZ/S1IT0 -BIBG UNY

HYS L olioog
Wwrs L0°6Z L§°LP9 1729 lelor
WS 20°6Z [B-0A ) 11229 lnyang
117229 000 0oQ {122 8L0Z/0E/L0 BLOT/OE/LO 1B %00°L WZ'0 80HL 00°000'SH2 L8l ISAWE TYHINTD L1 BLOZHOE!D
L1229 000 £1'229 00’0 8LOZ/0L/L0 8LOZ/0EN0 TEW %00°L WZ'0 BOHL  00°000'6%2 L9l 1S3 TYHINTD L1Z BLOZOE/LO
R %] L0EE ve'se oo'd YEOZIOZ/0L BN %66°G W00 L98SED  OT'.56'CC £2471079¢ 1S TYY3INTD G0L 8L0Z/0ZNL0
SIUBLUISBAL| JRIBUIEY
yse suopdwapay FECIT] saseyaing aeq uoliduosaqg Ajundeg  anjep al Aundag adky pand # JUBLSIAU] aeq
Aumey led ‘sues) “suesy

9rigl X1 unsny

S61 aung

BJOW °S LO6

SIRIDOSSY P UoSIaNEg

pund Aq padnoig

8102 ‘L€ Asenuer - gL0Z ‘| Asenuep pouad ayj 104
Joday uoner|ivuodsay ysen
BuisnoH s|qepioyy aje}s sexa]

BILYIIOREY § NODSVALIVY



§€{ Jep poday
LUL v dued) YW

Z6:¥L - 3LDZ/GL/Z0 ‘Bleg uny

Jv

HYSL oljojuod
00°0 E0°LER'IVT 00°0 £0°2£8'0VZ £0°2£8'94T SIPUMEN Jejo)
o0 E0°LER'OPE 0o CLERIPE bog'i LIDZIOENLO  8LOCIOE/LD €0°ZE8'9VT 8OHL v¥d  TvyINTD FaAYA Lol
awosu) SPaed0Id 15a48)u| Aumey e Auniey e ajeq a)eq anfep Jed 1anss| adky puniy # Juaunseau) disng
BN Aunew onjeA yoog ey aseyaund  AQunen ‘029G

SbL8L XL unsny

G661 sung

SBJOW 'S LOB
SIIRID0SSY  UOSISNE

810z ‘L£ Adenuer - g10Z ‘I Atenuer Buunp anp sjunowy
ajeg fjumey Aq pauog
Hoday Auney
BuisnoH ajqepioyy aje)s sexa]

2ILVII0ZSV § NRPNILLIVL



€ €'¢ 1op Hodey

0'Z'2 {1 Jud) A P6-pL - BLOZISHZO -97BQ UNY
dv

HVYS1 oljofiog

55°096' 000 55°096°S L0 98'020'022's 19°696'2£9'2 86'5.6'0Z6'8 leyor

55°096'§ 00'o $5'096°S PEED 99°070°022'S 29'696'2£9'2 86'6.6'026'8 ej0qng

Z1'961 og'o 2196l $80°0 000'L BLOZ/0E/L0 96'ZLE'0ET E0°LER'IPT 000 PHY  IWHINED FAYA L¥8L
6L°Ge 000 61'SZ o0 066'S YEQZ/0ZI0L BE ¥90°S Y9'6L0'S £5'9%0'S LND  IWHIN3IS 0oL £24T0Z9E
S6'61 o0'Q S661 8E0°0 oS0 ELLELTS 6+ 06L'ZS trOLE'2s gdd  vy3INAS Gil LELIS0E
19916 00’0 L99L6 Z260°0 0oLl 8L0Z/£2/80 00°000°000°L 00°000°000"L 00'000'000°1 av¥d  we3aNaD 202 640VOVYELE
rE'E80'1 0o PEERD'L 8010 Qoe'L G6LOZ/EZ/B0 00°000°000'L 00°000'000'L 00°000'000°L J¥4  IvHINID 602 ENBYOYELE
POFE 00’0 +O'vE +EO'0 0oF'0 8L0Z/70/S0 58'L0Z°001 $8°102'004 S8'LOZ'00L PHY TYYINID é1e SEHO009L0F
el 000 Wiyl FARN ] £IEL Lg'19t'9Z1L 95°65E'6Z1 S8LLY'LSL Zdd  vH3IN3D 2006 566666666
FAN o p 000 LIPPSE LEL'O 26t Z9'68L'S0LT 0L LOE'901 LTSPE'LLY9 ddd  wvHINED %4 0Los

SHUBWISIAU| [RIDUDG 1puUng

sBuiuieg UoNBIIDY pauwleg pouad ajey ajeg anjep yoog anjep yoog anea Jed adA) punyg # JUBWISIAL) dIsna
sasa paysnlpy  puonezRsowy }SaI| SIYL pialA eung Sunjely  eBessay Buyuu|bag Gu)puz Runoeg

sbunsey )sasau) paysnipy

anjep yoog abeiaay uo pal) pouad
8102 ‘1L¢ Aienuep - gLoz ‘I Aenuep
- pungd - pungd Aq pajog

mmwwu_ wmh ‘unsny sBuiuieg ysassyu| )
6O 'S L06 Buisnoy a|qepioyy 9Je)s SEXd |

SIRI00SSYy | U0sISlied

FILVIDI0STY 0 NDRUALIVY



S'E L iep Lodey

LZ'2{MSY Jud Sv $5-pL - BLOZ/SLIZ0 Deq uny
dv
HVS1 ollojod
0070
000 00°050')- 000 007050'L- 00°000'000°2 00°050°L 00°050'L00' 2101
000
0070 00°050'}- [0y} 00'050'1- 00°000'000°2 00°0S0°L 00°050'L00' jelogng
009 00g"L L102/ETIe0 FION #20 JWIHY
oo 00'054- 00'o 00°064- 00°000'000°t 00°0SL Q0°0SL°000°L 00-000°000°L GLOZIEEB0 TrdINTD 602
000 00L'L 9LOZIEZ/LL S10N 18D JWHS
oo 0000t~ 0 00'00¢- 00°000'000°t 00'00¢ Q0'00£°000°) 00°000°000°8 8L0Z/€2/80 TYH3INIO 80¢

SJUBW)SIAUY [EIBUBS)

810ZiLefto ybnoayl  gLOZALE/L0 UBNoIY]  pouad swy) 8LOZILO/LO JO SY anjep yoog Wuneasy] Jo jedidupg ajey jualng 2jeq “uowy pung 1anss]
THoIeUn Juno QZIOoWYY Jur HHOWY jJunow pazijolueun puy Buipu wnrualy |eulbu EELUEY
pazt n Uy paziiowy iy per AR b pazILoUY SUNOLUY pu3 dl o U2ind anep Jeg BinuuiBag eyeq Alumen # uaunseau|

pund - pung Ag pajog
810Z ‘1€ Aenuep - gLoz ‘L Aenuep

e 3|Npayag uoneziuowy
984N 'S 106 BuisSnoy ajqepioyy djels sexa)

$SABIN0SSY 9 UosIajeg

S3LVIINSIY § NOSNIAIVd



SE'L A Hoday

0Z2{Dd Jud) Dd PGk - BLOZ/SLIZ0 -@1eg Uy
dv
HYS ], oliojod
00°000'+Z0'E 00°000'vZ 00'000°000°¢ 00°0SE°L00°E 00°000°000' ‘$IVLOL ONYHD
00°000°Z10'L 0000071 00'000°000°L 00°00£°000°L 00°000'000'L 8102 3snbny Joj [eyoL
00005’ 00005'9 000 00°0 000 210N lIleD DWIHS 1saIaju| ENGVOPELIE  TVHINID B0C  8L0Z/£2/30
00°005'500'L 00005'S 00°000'000°t 00°00£°000'L 00°000'000°L B1ON IED DWTHS Aumepy BIOVOPELE  TYHINID 80Z 8LOZ/EZ/B0
810z Isnbny
00°000'Z1L0°2Z 00°000°Z1 00'000'000° 00°050°100' 00°000°000'Z 210Z Auenigey Joj |ejoy
00'000°000°L 000 00°000'000°L 00°052°000°1 00°000'000°L BION II®D JWHY neg ENGVOPELE  TYHINID 60C 8LOZ/EZ/ZO
00'005'9 00°005°9 0070 00’0 oo'o SION lIBD DWIHS 1saseu) ENEYOPELE  TYHINTD B60C  BLOZ/ETZO
007000"000' 1 000 00°000'000't 00'00£°000°L 00°000°000'L SION IIeD JWIHS es BJOVOPELE  TVHINID 80z  8LOTETRR0
00'006'S 00°005°S 000 00°0 000 BION 11€D DWIHS salay G4OVIPELE  TYHANID 80¢ 8l02/EZ/Z0
8107 Aenigad
0T 1saiau| jediautg 1509 [PUIBLQ anjep sed 1anss| adAL al apnoss pung #JusunseAl]  a)e(] ‘suea)
UORIBSURI] pajoafosd

810Z ‘L€ ¥snbny - 810z ‘L Aieniqag pouad ayj 104

- Alyuow Aq papog
mﬂﬁsﬁ unsny yoday mopysen payialoid
980N 'S 106 Buisnoy ajqepioyy 8jels sexa|

S3]RI00SSY B UOSISNRY

SILYIIOEEY § NDOVALLIVL



\'4

SILVIIOSSY % NOSHILIVA

8107 ‘1€ Arenuef

spuny snjdang
110day] JuduI)SIAU] A[YIUOIA

uolelodio)) Buisnop s|geploy 21.1S

O§es)




S1a0uuo0| -3nog

WEAR 001

1) oy g SR 053 L0008 11 Ao 109 0 | 9o A200e) ) AR ZH0t0f
a0 9102 14 pLE 16
%O e W[ S %G G UGL N %G 455 L[ RN A0 S5 o[ W %0 GRS URC Je

05 5+
e+
s %1
o

88.&._
0006 (L

[
0005°9¢+

00008

LIRESE 9115 /e W e+
073 ey

1SV WJOE/T Wb
oWEL PR

uoneziin Apoeden

il}

i

ajey wswioidwaun sn

“sqol aJow pue uunideynuew s Jayliny Suigeinodus

S1IE PUOM YL Ul aAIR0WOS pue sA1l3BI3IE 310U 3W0I3G sYodxe Jno
SEIUILING JAYI0 0 BAIRIDY ‘SN SYI 0) SIYBUIY SeY ISINOI JO JRJIOP JaYeam
1BYMBWIOS i ADUBLING UMO J19Y) BUIAPBPUN S312U31N3 JO 1SEq JI3Y) LI anjea
BANE[R) |83 5IUBsRIdEI OSN YL I3UIS AJRNIUN ST 3A0W B YdNns ng ‘padwinf
puog-] @y} pue $3310U N JO 3SEY2INd 51 qUNI AR By JBY) PRILIY

JOWNJ Y ISYJBW 1BY] P3| pue pa|qued uaaq sey Jedag Aunseal] ay) woy
afessaw ay3 y3noyile Jejjop saxeam Ajydis e Aq paisooq ag pnoa spodx3

“1eaA e u) uoisuedxa Addns

1598819 3 US3S sey yaiym 1o s1 uonejyul uo |Ind JaizeSau ¢ "umop adelane
ay1 Buynd spodxa pue salojuaAur Ajuo Yum (959°TT) Sutpuads jequapisal sem
se {98 £) dn sem uondwnsuod jeuostad “Yi3uaals peouq Syl $333))a4 OS|E @O

"yuow siy3 dn ase sajes asnoy Suipuad uaal sqol pauielsns Jo 3IUSPIUCD
0 13A2] Y31y & 01 SYEIdS ING BLWOSLIOM SABMIE SI STUIARS UO UMOPMEIP 941

‘Buimold ale siapiaosd 3214435 pue suiiy Swanpoad
spood syl yiog saninn pue uoneuodsuel) ‘Suniienuew ‘apes) ‘Adisnpul
Buipning ay3 w dn Sumoys Awouoda y) ssolde sieadde Yyimoud gor

o4 MOJ2Q 3184 JuawAc|dwaun ayl 9.l pue YISuans L T0Z 4O uoienuiIuo

€ 0} pE3| Aew Wiojal xe) ay) Aq pajesausd saxiy a8em (Buomippy (ss3] Sulaes
pue) a1ow Juipuads 51 0ym JaNSUO3 3Y) paunds AjUIRLIDI Sy )| uole|jul
o3ul paay Aews yaym saBem Jaydiy o1 spea| Ju3jel Jeyl Joy uoiiadwed Suny
ISngoy saNJom paules) 10 SuA s ade siahodwa pue dn aJe sallejes
pue safem Yimosd pue uone)ul ‘sjjoshed ag o) ANURUOCD 51031084 A3y Ay

"AlWI0u023 3y Jo uoisuedxa pros e JnoySnouy) s100ys
u33LE JO PlAYY B MOYS SI01BJIPUI JO Bouesapuodald e pue yoog adiag s pey
YL "#5IN02-40 OF 10U P|NOYS UONEZI|EWIOU ADES]S PUE MO[S 0] UGIID2.P

Y1 INg *||IMOd J1BYD) 61 UI|[IA YD WOLJ UOINISUED] YIO0WS J1eYD) e Osje
s 51208 1snipe 20 waye 03 pasn Ajjewaou st yoiym Supaaw Aenuel IW0L YL

jJead uondaEd

e Ut Ajfe12adsa— JaAamoy SIUAWIS|HIUS PUB 2ININIISELU| UDIMIB]G 3[1Ieq
pajueleq e Suiag dn pua Aew 3| uonesdiww o1 Suipad 3qap ay) wioJy peaye
s3j11eq mau pue 3de(d U) wiojal xel yiim Jydiods ay3 oyun paddals yiuow siyl
sey Adjod |eas) ‘uonez|ewsou spaemo) Aemyied onpoJb, e suleIsns aalasay
|eJ3P34 3] SB IWIY] B UIRWISY |(1M S3)RJ MO| A|JEDLICISIY AIYM PUY SN0
ulew s13NJew 3yl uaaq sey Adjod Aejauow ‘sieahd uaaas sed ay) Jo4

W10}y Xe] pue S]00US U0



bk atichibt

sajeajenuue [ passnipe Ajjevoseag SIsheUY HWaLmM3 JaNeaINg 1

iy 9107 oTar ¥Ioz

=

1auenb Suipadasd wody aBueyd Juaniad 4o B3y

‘MO|S

O3 YN3IYYIP 3G |)IM JUBWUONAUD imaad sty ul sBuluies aasod AjsnonSiquieun
pue yimo.sd jeqojd paziucsydsuis 2y Ing sydiy Ju0ISIY 1e Apeai|e 1s00q

134JeW Y035 B SB USS3) Aew uonendas-ap pue SIND Xel 1210d103 $,WI0J3 Xe),

{'vroz/v

3uIs salel 35aydiy 53118 spuels mou Jead-gr ay)) suB|aJanos Jauyio 1suele
2NjeA BAIE[RS 5,3AINT B U0 Juapuadap — Jayliny salea 3sIe PINGI YHYM

annd ayy 03 Ajddns ppe jim siyl ‘suomsod AlInas 30 ul N2 18y} Jo Led se
Anseast Aq suonisod awos Jo Buunjew/aseafa: Ayl ynm Juoly 's|ig-1 ||im se
YIUOW B UOI|[}g £$ AQ 35BEIUI (14 $DI0U JBBA £ DU Z JY] "SIDIAIIS |BIIOS 1330
Pue AJUN23g |B120S "aJe3P3IN Ul S||eylioys 198PNg YoIew 01 J3pI0 Ul uol)Iq 995
Aq aseasou) ||Im suoiiane (JesA pE 03 §) SalNsesJ ), paiep Suo ‘600z 3Iuls 1500q
15414 S3 U) Je3A $1Y) suonane 53 Juiseasdu) aq (im AINSBaL| “1503 € e $IWoD
SIUBWA0IW 3INIINIISEIUL PIPABU YINW 40y sue(d By} pue wioya xey ay)

i18Y3 51 P03 MOH jSaauIm

3344 saaho)dwa sy Buind ) spueaq s$91S0H UIAI pue sadem Jayly Jo palsooq
BAEY XIPa4 pue Lewea ‘@ddy ‘sadem pue syoaydied ul 30edwi Jjlayl umoys
Apealje 3aey swiogas ay) Ajjeansawoq 'siefjop sn aleniedal o) paudisap

3Je YIIym S0 XBY $N Yl AQ P31024je 3q OS[ ||Im S19)JeW {BUOIBUIAIY|

‘SN Y3 3pISING $3xJew 3yl 01 uondo ue Buneald sayes 13yl SIS PINOYS YYM
UOIJEZIJEWIION SPIBMO] HIOM O] BNUITUCD JIAIMOY |B43UaT Ul SHUE] |BIIUI

241 "Seup 0} sanuiUCd pue INgpuey 1x3uU N13Y) 138 0) Ajuewud Ing sainseaw
Allaisne {euonippe awos passed sey 239249 "AJUIBLIZOUN SPPE y3lyMm uxag
Surwoadn 113Y3 104 3N 9Y) Aq pred aq 03 sUOISSIUCT paunbal ayy Suiddn s A3
9yl ‘wawdAojdwaun Y31y Ajusogqnis pue uoneyul Suimos yim ajpany olew

e sey §73 3y} Inq SN Y3 Yyum JUo|e s31e) S}t ISIeS 01 3SINOI UD ||3S S| epeue)

'S3ILIOUOD |EUCIIELIRIUII U0 puadap 22183p UlelIB) € 0] PUE 133|424 IS |IIM
BAIND Y1 JO UOIIERU IY] PUE S3YIY Y} ING %52 Z 01 11 1YSIA0 Y] aye)
liw 1834 S1y3 s3Iy 22J4yL “senUNUED YIMoIS Siy) ) 3|geuoseal aq o) sieadde
Y2HIM 3B1WIWOT 3YY oL YIIRIA W 3NN %570 © UL Jing Apeadje sey Jayew
2yl WBIods syt Ul urewa) )M JNOL Y] HOONC aAIISOd [JBIDAC Y3 YIM

saguey?) J11SaWO( pue jeuoljeulalu|




IAQE O} SpUNH PB4 — BAIND PIBIA |iN - SSIEH IUOW JO PUTF

1£0f 1401 IAS 14T JAT oy owg spuny paJg

9%00'0

—|L %S0

91-39(] T
L1-11q }
u
Ll-unp —— b %051 a
L1-3) - [s]
%00z 4
=]
d

L 9.0ST

%00°E

e e &Omm

"24n3ny 3y ul LOINSOd SIYY JUIYI-31 ABW ABY] [9IBJINSDL JBADU [IM UOHIENUI 1Byl SUMaq e oym s103saAul Buo) 23221puUl pua SUo| LoggMs YL .
*adueyd Ajpargnopun Jjim s1y) Ajjeuoiieulaiu
dn FulACw 248 531BJ 1BYL MON "J2183|D SAW03Q 3aNINd I |IUN YSED P|oy $10153AUI Se Ajuleliaoun [eajod-0ad pue (ea1wouods [eqo)d Sunuinuos
(a) pue saaneuaalje jruolIRLIBIVI UYL JBYBIY AUk PBJ BY1 AQ P3| SN Y3 ul S31BJ (B) 513331 YIUOW-331Y) BY1 03 SPUN) JYTILIDA0 WOl UoISIAAU! JYSIS 3Y)
‘(suoloe Buises jewou Joy WooJ BuUAIS) 31NNy Y3 Ul INJJ0 PJNoYS LUOISSaZAL
€ J1 UoiysnI AJEISUOW B 331D 0} 3.iSAP S) Y Buoje Awouoda ayi u) y1Bualls 3yl JO MaIA S,p34 3y} AQ UBALIP AlIR3|3 S| PUD LIOKS 3Y] Ul 3A0W BY] -
“[3A3| aunf sy aa0de Ajaysis Ajuo Ajusogqgnis sAels pua Suo) ayl Ing dn PaAOW arey sajed
HOYs 341 10T H! Sawl) 810w 33.y) ejualod e s3e. spung pag syl asied 0] 19511 uo 3q 03 sieadde pue 1333 UL 5338) PISIEI 3AISSIY |BIDPIS AYI SY =
"8TOZ 01U PANUIIUOI sey aaInd (daals ss58]) Buiuajle) e 104 UIIDU0D 3Y] =

< u due)eg JYsLy pul4 01 88n.41S SojeYy




ViiNd

'%LpL’S Bup|ath
S| oljoj3iod anoA jo uoliod ysed-uou ay)

"'uU00s SuIWOoD Spuny xXe} 3y}
Joj ueyd pue sadue|eq ysed adnpaJl 03 AW S| Y

"SyUBQ Y} PISINOG I|E|IEAE ISOY) SNSIBA
531eJ Y33 Yl MIIASI ISNW SUOAIDAS pue
susodap mau u) pasasajuiun UIBWAI Syuey

'sjood ay1 1524 ||IM Je3A 3UO puUOAIq

saley uJaded |eIDI3WIWIOD O] $S3308 YJIM
3503 Jof Ajje1adsa s|qe|ieae ase saAlleUID) e
ULI3] LIOYS PUe A0W 5,pa4 syl yum dn
BAOW 0] INUITUOD $3JEJ WIDY-1oYs Asana ay]

"SUOI}IpUOd
12)4ew a|ne|oA 0] 1sn(pe 121199 ued oljojuod
palisiaAIp e asnedaq Ajuniew adesane
Pa[10J43Uu02 B puB uonedo||e 1asse jewdo

10j 01]104140d NOA SMDIA3I AjJURISUOD YR d

8107 ‘1§ Adenuer Jo sy

0110J140d JNOA

o T v r o e e gy




§¢'L 48 Lodey
02 (LN 4ud) g
dv

3581 oljofuod

OL:ZL - RIOZ/SLIZO BleQ] uny

60-ZL B1LOZ/SLIZO '4SSL L3S ‘peiepdn eleq
810Z/1E/L0-81.0Z/10/1.0 powad Buipoday

[B1oUBUIS JBIYD UNWS BRUISW

“Apoq Bunueact ay) o) sansojasip |Ing apinesd o) oyojed ay) Jo suonejuasardas Jiydesd se jjsm se "uodses uonIesues € 'pouad ay) Jo pus ay) 10} Bodal AJOJUSALI PA|IEISP € 'MBIAISAC
Alewwns awabeuew e apnjpu| suodal 8y "SIUBLWISSAUI 1O Oljood s,uoieIodioD 8y} Iy Ajianoe pue uomisod ay) jo uonesodios) BuisnoH ageployy 21eIS SEXa] ay) Jo Apoq BuiuiaAos sy uuow
Allny 01 13p40 U 1OV BY) AQ pasinbal Jou uogRULIOI [EJURWaIddNS Jayo os|e sHodal Ul (9GZZ APeD LADS SEXSL) 19V JUBLISIAU| SPUNJ JI|GNd SUYi UM SOUEPIOODE Ul PAJILIGNS 818 SHoda) BUMMO|0) 3k

0L'siv'ect

ajeq o] Jesy |easiq

ST'L6T'62

leaA uauny

Buipug yuow L Lenuep

sBujuie] j2j0)

. ‘ PP S S SJUBLISSAL)
FA 7R 6lL°L £65°L %00 001 S9'6Z6 £ET'S 6Z'P62° 529G S9°6Z6 £ECS
1 7] gZe'L 045°4 slee £9°958'ELL"L ¥S'GSE 6481 £8°9GR'ELL'L {DWTHL) senunoag yhnosy) ssed
£61'S 0149 8EG'L g5 Gl 65'6L9'GLE 99087 L¥R B656LO'SLE {(YWNJ) senunoeg ybnoy) sseqd
rIg's 142'2 are's i R EZESP' QLT 60'80L¥56 € EZESP'POL'E {(YWND) senunsag ybnosy) sseq
‘Anb3 gog Kunye unag oljojed  anpeA anjep, anjep SIUBWISIALY
WLA o) seq 0% yoog aael deg

8102 ‘1€ Aenuer
- Arewiwng oljojuod

9F28L X1 unsny

§61 sIng

“BdOW 'S 106
SILID0SSY 1§ UoSIalled

juawabeuep oljojuog

spung sn|ding - Buisnoy ajqepioyy ajels sexa]

SALYIIDESY ¥ MOSNILLIVd



§'EL 18p uodey
022 (LS Judh 1S
dv

4881 ollojuod

ZZ:L1 - MOZISLIZ0 eleQg uny

6L1'L FA 784 00°004 S9°6Z6'CET'S S9°6Z6°CEZ'S 6 afielany pue [ejot

6L1'L wLs 00°001 §9°6Z6'EET'S S9'6Z6'CET'S L6 I=io¥ang

LLZ'L ¥28's L1915 ETESK'POL'T ETESY'POL'E 14 IYAIND] s3nundag yBnowy ) ssed

0449 £6r'S 95751 BSE19'SL8 65'619'518 Ll (¥WN) senundag ybnoyy |, ssed

8ze'L SkLS 5L°2¢ EB9SE'ELL'L £E9S8'ELL} j:14 {OWHZ) senunaeg ybnowyy, sseq
SIUIWISBAU] [RIDUID pund

Aunew oy S9E WLA OljoIod anjep Yooy anjea SJUBLIISBAU| adA] Ajunodeg

sheq afiviony obesony JLETS Jed 10 Jaquinp

9vigl X1 ‘ussny

S61 2Ing

QBJON 'S L6
S3RI00SSY F UOSISed

pung Aq padnoig
8102 ‘1€ Aenuep
adA] Aq Liewiwng
snjding - BuisnoH Yv 1S sexaj

RILVIINREY § NDSNALIVL



§'E'L UeA Loday

VLA ) 14 Z2Z-L1 - BLOZIELZ0 -91EQ uny
dv
4851 Oljojuo
PZE'L  BEOZOZIZO 16GS 025's 059°s 06'220°001 0r'ev8 Z6 Ov'Zv8'Zo LVOZILEIVO a6y ZEPYRO 29 174 EWTASEZ9E
veE'L  BEOZOZIZ0 ZPO'9 096°6 0oL'e 9S'ELL'BEL SLEIL LML 8L'EOLLLL LL02/92/60 s prEreo 29 BEZ SAHAS6Z9E
vEZE'L  BEOZNOZIZO TPE'S 198°5 000’9 £8°'LO0'ES EE'BIP'SL EEBIY'SS LLOZIBEIGO e 1L00KBY 29 9ET rEXS629E
£€6Z'L  BEOZ/OZ/LO ZPO'Q 656'S 00L'9 PE'EEE'E0L 9Z'65L4'86 9Z'95L'86 L102razi60 BN 266£89 29 €T QJEXS6T9E
€62°'L  BL0Z/QZNO [65S 0zg's 059'S 89°1L0¥'SE EAArA L AN ZZ'The'zE LLOTILZIV0 abIW £66£80 29D Sz £3EXE629E
£6Z'L 8EOZ/OZILO ZYBS 1985 000'9 L' POV 9E 0Z°00L'eE 0Z'001'EE LL0Z/BZI60 abIw 018289 29 £ET YLHMS629E
£62'L  BEOZIOZLO ZPE'S 198'S 000'9 PE'ECEBY ¥ Z6Y vt B T6Y' Ty L10Z/BZI60 3B 00,289 29 FAA YHNMSEZ9E
2ET'L  IEOZIOELL  LYO9 656'S 0019 §6'SLL'GZL L2°0L0¢€1L LE0LO'ELL L102/8Z/60 abiw PZoL88 79 34 PWSNS6T9E
9L LEDZIOERRL ZYE'S 09e's 0009 000 00o oo FARI A= AL aBIW pzaoss 29 614 +0INS629E
292'L  LlEOZIOZIZL ZYES 198'S ) 01°v04'98 29'5e8'8L Z9'SE8'8L L102/82/60 abin 80088 29 622 PSONS6298
W0Z'L  IE0Z/0Z/0L 865°S 616°S 059'S 20°p8P'SL 947420°04 ' LZ0'0L FARCAFEA 0] BN 69PLL0 TD (4 %4 92106629¢
OFl'L  LEQZ/OZ/B0 889°C 0lLg's 08L'S £9°0Z1°99 E0°666'09 £0'666'09 LLOZI0E/LO abIW 884120 29 0T YESWSEZIE
LLVE IE0Z/0Z/60 965°S 6155 059'S PELZL PE L67195°1E L6°195°1E LL0ZILE0 abi g85t.L8 29 4 ¥4 LWNWSEZ9E
ZEZ'L  LEOZ/OZILL SE9'S L19°G 05L's 00°0 000 000 9102/82/60 abin 715249 29 564 LYONGEZ9E
T9Z'L  LEQZ/OZIZL G695 LGS 0SL'S 6¥'EV6'801 SE¥RY'O0L SE'vey 001 9102/92/60 abIN Z4vZ20 2D v61 YHOMSEZIE
§05'L  8LOZ/OZ/0 B £98°S 0009 £4459°001 2670Z5'L6 1602516 L102/82/60 abin 819969 Z9 gve 6IPNOETIE
ZSE'L  BLOZ/OT/EQ EVES 198’ 0009 £5'¥66'E9 8L°581'85 BL'G81'95 2102/82/60 b £19989 29 e ONAHBEZIE
826’ LEO0C/I0ZN0 €69°S 195 0SL'S BL'SZI6EL cL'l56'82L Z17156'821 9102/82/90 BN 02112929 ¥8L E£40A06Z9E
L68'9 SCOZIOCICl £69C §19's 0SS Z9'696°ZS 69°€58'8Y 69'ES8'8Y 9LOZ/8E/80 abN £51129Z9 g £2IA06Z9E
SL0'L  LEQZIOZIPD $69°S 9195 08L'S §2'CLLIEE 08°260°LE 0B L60'1E 9102182190 abi Z1Lz1Z9 29 88l 950A06Z9E
198'0  9LOTIOCILL PEV'S 6SE'S 06k'S 0¢'o 000 000 910Z/82/90 abiy 191129 29 81 Y98A062Z9E
§11'9  9E0Z/0Z/80 BEV'S E9ES 06¥'S 00’0 00’0 00'g SL0Z/L2/80 #BiN £02Z2L9 29 vil 6O0OXZ029E
£98'9  OLOZ/OZ/LL YEVS 6SE'S 06v'S 69'80Z'88 PL248'28 F1EL528 910z/82/90 aB1)y 980608 29 8Ll OMNLZ0Z9E
£80°9  9£0Z/0Z/S0 LEPS £9E°S 06¥'S Zrezett 82 8:9'011 84°8L9°0L1 SLOZILERD 261 592909 29 j¥1) SMLX10Z9E
2¢9'9  9t02/0TIED LEVS 2IE'S 06¥'S 000 0o o0 SLOT/LEIR0 abij 99£900 29 i) ZZSX10Z9E
Z92'L  LEOZIOZIZL ZTYOD 6965 001’9 96'629°96 Z5'18z' /9 25'182'48 FARALTA L] #bIN 20189 29 6ET SOIAG6C9E
£€62'L  BE0CI0ZND ZPO'G 656'S ooL'9 000 0o i LLOZ/8TIE0 aByjN 0S0PRY 29 fiorA IAGXSETIE
Z9Z'L LEQZIOZRZL ZYO'9 656°S 00L°9 ££'8925°1Z1 207044601 L0°0L2'601 2102/82/60 abN | L8289 29 PeZ THHMGEZIE
198’9 9£0Z/OZ/LL 269G PLIS 0SL'S Z8'EE6'69 L9°P05 P9 FAR 0 ] 9102/82/60 abin orzzLe 29 €61 SWIXZTOZIE
gL' BE0ZI0ZISO EVE'S °I8S 0009 6268162 21'0r5'92 LL0vs'9z 2102182160 #B)N 05.069 29 174 PL1D96Z9E
PPy'L  BE0ZIOZI0 BES'S 128°S 0s9's MrPLE LY 95" LSE v S5 LSE by LLOZILTIO 2B 91.L069 29 0 B6SNOB6TIE
(VWND) senunaag ybnouyy sseg
fume seq S9E 09t o1y anjeA 19en IngeA ey anfeA yoog sleq Janss| # UBWISIALE dISNa
o] shkeq Aumeny  NLA LA auns aseyding

8102 ‘1¢ Adenuep
pung Aq sjusuwisaau|

memh__.w% upsny SJUBWIISIAUY |RIBUIS) - TYHINID pung %
8O 'S LOG snjding - BuisnoH ¥y 1S sexa]

SOIRIDOSSY § UOSISNe

231¥IJ085Y 3§ NOSFILLVL



§E'L 4B poday
vreiid dud) 14

Z8-L1 - BLOZISLIZY 8eQ uy

z abeg

pun4 Aq sjuawyseaau]
SjUaWSAAU| [2I9UID - TYHINIO pund

dv
4SS, ollopi0d
8489 9£0Z/0/ZL 1TY'S LPE'S 06F'S 00’0 Q00 00’0 9102/82/90 a6 £OP0TE N4 9il 0AHICLVIE
Z8K'9  SEOZ/O/LL E£ZPS BYE'S Q6P'S 59'652'9. 9E'6L9'rL 9E'6LY'PL SEOCILTI0 2B 279116 Nd osl LAATLLYLE
9549 9E0Z/LO/80 SZTH'S LSE'S 06¥'S 1Z°510'98 9 LZS S 9P LTSS SEQC/LZIB0 ab £50r06 N4 €9l SYWDLLPLE
§22'9  9EOZNOILG S2rS LSE'S 06P'S 88 ¥LO'VY STBLL'EY STeLL'EY SLOT/LZR0 3By 06868 NJ 891 LIMADLYLE
SZL'9  9E0ZLOML0 SZP'S LSE'S 06r'S L IEE'96 00°ZLE'E6 00'CLE'EE SLOZ/LE80 aby 121868 N4 491 SSANOLYLE
G69'9  9£02/L0/90 SITY'S LSE'S 06k'S 000 000 oo'e SLOE/LEI80 3By 668968 N4 991 PONLOLPLE
8PE'9  QEDZAO/LL 089S z209's 08L's ob'5E9°'88 66°1EL'G8 66°1£L'68 9L0Z/8g/80 264N 596868 N4 et ZEMAOLYLE
L8£'9  QE0Z/LO/E0 0TS Ore’s 06t's £8'6Z¥'59 62°509'c9 64'509't9 91L02/8Z/80 BN pOEB6S N4 SiL BZMADLYLE
G69'9  9E0Z/LO/I0 SEZP'S Lge's 06P'S 00'0 000 000 SL0Z/LZI80 abiN £52968 N4 591 ENMS0LPLE
99’9 SE0Z/LO/SO SZY'S 0GES 0EY'S P6°G51765 00°0EV' LG 00°0EY' LS SL0Z/LEI80 2BIN 109568 NJ 41 ZOVYS0LPLE
Y89’ 9E0T/I0/SO SZPS 0sE'S 06r'S MVEB'LEL PLOLO'9ZL rL'049'0ZL S10Z/L2/80 abIN LLL168 Nd £91 BEMINOLPLE
PES'S  SEQT/IOYO PEV'S OSE'S Qer's 000 oon 000 S102/42/80 abin 02€168 NJ 291 SdrdLpLE
YO’ 9EOT/LOIPD  EPS (1] QEF'S 0L'ZLY'SE EEG09'pY €609 P SLOZ/L2/80 abiq £65188 Nd 191 PINXE0PLE
182’9 SEOT/LOMBO 6.9°C 1095 0si's YO'9LETL Y5 POE'0L PCPOe 0L 9102182120 aBIN ZZ1968 NJ £81 ELANGLPLE

{wNd) senunaeg ybBnoy) ssed
02z's ¥Ze’s SpL'g 60°B0L'PSE'Z ETESH'FOL'E ETESH'POL'T abesany pue jejoyqng
€Ir'L  8E0Z/OZISO Y09 096°S 0oL's LY'G6Y'G6 L6'852'98 16'852'98 L1L0Z/82/80 ab)y 95989 729 ) 74 ZXMOBEZoE
£iv'e  BEOZT/OZISO EPE'S 298'S 000'9 80'129°29 16 9E6'95 16'9€6'95 LL0Z/8Z180 ably 09£889 29 v 9AMA96Z9E
EirL  BEOT/OTISO EVE'S 298’ 0009 vOEr9Lp LLPZE'EY LLPEE'EY ALOZIBTIB0 a6l 815980 29 £V LHAQSEZ9E
995'L  BEOZAOTIOL PPO'Q 296G o0L'g ZY'OEL'EE L9'099've 19°099'v8 LLOZ/BETIHO abI £6500L 29 [vi*14 Z3AMLB86Z9E
995°L  BEOZ/0Z/OL vRO'Q Z96's aoL'9 0L'EEZ'PLL SLLBL'E0L 5L'L8LE0L 2L0Z/82180 abIN LoP00L 29 6¥7 £9419625¢€
S04°L  8£0Z/0Z/B0 169G £19s 084G 06 LLV'EL 09'912'29 or'alL L9 LLOZHENO abiy 968869 29 802 SdNHI629E
vive  BEOZIOZ/Z0 1GGS PISS 059°s 0L°9Z€°L9 £4°950'29 €4°85t'29 LIOZ/OE/ED afiy ££4969 29 102 BYHEJ6Z9E
505°L  BE02/0Z/B0 169G £19°G 0sL's 000 o0’ 000 LVOZIOE/LO o51N BEY9EY 7O 90z I XPNIGZOE
PIv'L  BEOZIOZIL0 PPO'Q L96'S 00L'9 P9°968'Z8 SSOre'PL SSorarL LLOZIREIGO o6 666£69 29 FA 4 OHIANS6Z9C
Pl 8E0ZI0ZIP0 169G £19's 0545 SLELLES BZ'SL0'55 9260’65 LLOZIOEILO BN GL2069 2D 502 CPINOB6Z9E
gi¥sL  BEQZ/OZISO B6S'G L€5'S 059°G o' ¥69' 8P 05 08E'st 06'08¢°6y LLOZILEIPD afiN ¥1E889 29 B6LZ £4N09629¢E
€884  BLOC/OZ/PO0 165G LZ5'S 0898 89961 45 8BS vE0'es 85'PI0ES LVOZILZIVO 96N £19989 29 8z SrA886Z9E
£€8E°.  SE0T/0Z/PD EVE'S c98’s Q005 LZL6E'C] TLTIE'PL cLElE L £1L0Z/8CI60 abin 915989 29 (374 $34MB9629E
ZSE'L  QEOTIOZIED L6S'S LZ8'S 059°S Z2E'949'48 PE £8L'Z9 YE'ERLZ9 LLOZILEIVO abiy 585589 29 FAY4 LIMY96Z9E
¥ZE'L  8EOZI0ZIZ0 ZIVE'S 19g's 0009 000 oo'e 000 L10Z/8Z/60 BN 60589 29 ore SENASEZIE

(vIIND) senundsg yBnouy] ssed
Aumew aeq 59¢ 09¢ ajey anjen JoeH anjep sed anjeA joogd s1eq dBnEs] if Wwaunseau| dISNd
ol sheg Aumew WLA WLA LNy aseyoIng

8102 ‘1€ Adenuer



S'€'L oA Hoday

VL2 did dydiie 2221 - SLOTS1Z0 “9eg uny
dv
4881 onopuod
pOE'L  BEQZNOMD E£04S 6Z9's 0sL's BEE6T'SL L8'PPL'B9 18¥Pl 69 LL0CI0ENLO b LS6LEN DY Log 293XLZELE
PEE'L  BEOZ/LOSO LSE'S 9.9 0009 BLZLG'SOL 6ZE0EEE 62°E0E'E6 LL02192/60 aby £06LEN D4 522 99aXLZELE
EEE'L  BEOZ/LO/EO E09'S 926G 0S9C  BEOSE'EL 151618 151518 LLOZ/END sBIN ZVELEN D4 661 EMEXLZELE
EIZ'L  lE0ZNO/LL BOSS  EESG  0SOG  SYZEL'SH 9€'S61°09 9E'66100 LLOZIIZIBO 26IN 9590£N 94 2z EUMASEELE
Z81'Z  LE0Z/LOM0L ZTOSS  SZSS  0S9'S  000 000 00'0 LLDZIEND aBIW 9100EM D4 £02 SHAASEELE
B96'0  JEOZNOEO L0 BZ9S  0SLS  v99S0'RY $9'605°29 58'605'29 910Z/82/60 26N SZEOEN 94 161 PIASECLE
SS¥'Z  BEOZLNI0 0SS /2SS 0S95  69PEBEE SL290°LE SLZH0LE LLOTIOEN0 86N p81ZEN O4 zoz EIWINXIZELE
PEE'L  BEOZNO/SU JS6S 985 0009 /199068 I6'E81°08 16°€81'08 £L0Z/8Z/60 2By vg0zEN O4 -4 BHIXLZELE
POE'L  BE0Z/LO/PO €09 BZSS  0S9S £OVETO v0'P68'8S #0'P68°'8S LLOZEND aBiN 9561LEN O4 00Z 653XIZELE
POE'L  BEOZNOMG [S6S  S/8S 0009  SEBEYLL 25'8YE'v9 ZSRPE' b 1LOZ/BZ/60 sbiw ozgLen O4 vZz IXVXIZELE
POE'L  BEOZAOMD £OLS  GZ9S  OSLS  68'9R00L ZT'S9ErY ZZ SOC'e ZLOZI0EIL0 sbw ozeLen D4 861 SAVXIZELE
BEE'.  BEOZNLO/E0 JSB'S GBS 0009 LELSELL SE'SLL0L S6'SLL'0L 2L02/92/60 aby sps1en 94 (Frd ZISMIZELE
PLZ'L BEOZMO/LG 9509 ELES  QOL'9  O0E'96ZHS Z6'LE6'SY I6'LEG'BY 11.02/8Z/60 8B LL60EN D3 zez TIVMIZELE
666'9 LEOZMOMO 10L'S  6Z9%  0SLS  €6LZ0LL S0°LE2'69 SO 1EZ'Se 9102/82/90 sBiw seeten D4 181 OVYNAGEELE
V'L LEOZ/LORL 9509  £46'C 0019 SEEBLS 81°0ZL'6L 8L0ZL'6L £10Z/92/60 aBipy £920EN D4 -7 LYZASEELE
€L LEOZNO/LL 609S <ES'S 059’5 L O6E'BLL S8 LLY'BOL S LLP'B0L 9L0Z/BZ/90 s6in 0ogoEN D4 Z8i LZNASEELE
080°L  ZE0ZN0M0  L04S BEZXG OGLS 0£'685'96 8L°0LL'88 801188 9102/82/60 abiy 9Z¥0EN D4 6! SMJASEELE
090°.  JEOZNOMO SOL'S  OE9S 0SS pE'BLYRD SY'0E0'ED S90E0'ES 9102/82/90 abiwy 68€0EN D4 ol SONASEELE
PEE'L  BEOZ/MOISO LISES  OL8'S 0009 €TLISSL £2°600'89 £2'600'89 L102/82/60 sy £91ZEN D s SINXLZELE
SZ¥'Z  GEOZAOD/90 LLOS  FESS  0SE'S  EGOSKES 9L'85%'vS BLGEP'bS 2102122190 sBIw 9L 1ZEN D [1¥ TEIXIZELE
ZOL'L  LEOZNOOL BOYS  ZES'S  0S9S  @B'ZEE'YO 0L°06v'66 0£°08v'65 LL0ZLZ100 aBiw LLEoEL 4 60 9ANA98ZLE
TOV'L  IEOTNOMOL TOOS  GZ6'C OS9G BL'G90°LL ZS'PEO'SL Z9'r59'sL LL0ZI0E/L0 oBin £ze0tL B 961 £0709821LE
0p6'9  IEOTNORO 90.S  BZS 0S4 GS'BSS'EE 80°L9V'SE 80°L91'SE 9L0Z/8ZI60 2B 0900EL D4 641 65909821
BY6'S  ZS0Z/LOE0 L04S  BZOC 0S4 ZE008'9R 6E'CHL6L 6E°GYL'6L 9102/82/60 »61 890081 D4 061 100098ZIE
BI8'0  SEOZ/NORL IS¥'S  SLES  OBY'S  OF08Y0P 04745528 0£155'.8 $102/22/80 aBi J0g0EN D 091 BNYMASEELE
6202  ZE0ZNO/SO LO9'S  vZSS  0S9S  SO'vB0'9R 1P 1288 LY Z8'eL 11020810 #6IN £z£29Y D 161 FISAMETLE

(OWIHA) senunaas ybnosyy ssed
s9L's E6FS  8L¥S 99°05Z' 148 65°619°'518 65'619'518 sbeiany pue |ejoigng
€122 IEOZNO/ML €BSS 106G OS9G ZO'EOL'SOL £°62510L £4°645'L0L 9102/82/90 oBin 622296 NJ ol 09YrtLpLE
ZSL'L LEOZNO/GD BZP'S ¥SE'S 06r'S 00'd aca 0’0 SL02142/180 a6y Ot 1LES6 N4 ¥4 OATHELRIE
B96'0  LEQZ/LOEO ZZP'S 8PE'S 06+'S 000 can Q00 9102/82/90 aB)N Ss56¥6 NI ik ODAWWELFLE

(vINA) sanundag ybnosy sseyd
Luniew =1eg g9t 09t aey A Juen angeA J1ed anjea yoog aleq J8nss| # Juswiiseadt) dISND
o) skeq fumey WLA WLA waung ISBYIIN
810Z ‘1€ Aienuer

¢ abeg pund Aq sjuaw)saau|

SJUBWISAAU| [BJOUIS - TYHINTSD pun4



§'E°L dep Loday
L1214 dudd

221 - BLOZ/SLIZ0 seg uny

dv

JSS1 Oljood

8L’L LPLS 999°5 6Z'F6Z5L9'S S9°6Z6'EET'S S9'6Z6'EET'S abesany pue sjusunsesu] [ejo)

1ZT'e S¥LS 999°§ P5'65E'648°L £8'958'ELL'L ER9SB'ELL L abesaay pue |Ryoigng

EVZ L LE0ZNOMTL 956'S vi8'S 0008 000 ooo 000 L10Z/82/80 abiy 9860€N 94 £2z TXIMIZELE

S0E'2  SE0Z/N0/Z0 0L9S £EG'S 059's SPOLEPLL ZBERL'VOL Z8'€82'v0L FARVARRAL] afy gs6LEN O [1]F4 SLIXITELE
{OWTHL) senunseg ybnoayy ssed

Aumen ejeq 59¢ 09t ey anjep Jeew anpep g anjea yoog aeg J8nss| # JUdW)saAl| dISND

ol skeq Aumew NLA WLA FUETTLEY aseyaing

p abeyd

810Z ‘1£ Aenuerp

pung Aq sjuauisanu|
SJUBWISIALY [esoudn) - TYNINIS pung



€L Jap Lodey

0Z'2{0V Jud) oV £Z:L1 - BLOZISLZO BIBq uny
dv
4SS1 oljojuo4
PE'61T 00°HL Pe'EYL 000 LEOZZB0 BN %GOS W00 StLYCD  DLBRL'ZE LIMNIWGGZ9E 1B TYEINTD £1¢ 8L0Z/0Z/10
868y PEESE 12’628 00’0 BEOZ/0Z/B0 BN %S5 L0 886970 L6°POS'6Y SdNUY9EZIE =8Bl TYHINTD 802 SLOT/0ZA0
zTler sg'9zL LIVET ooo BEOZ/OT/LD 1P %S9 IO 96920 9Y'GES'ED #vad9629¢ 1saie TYd3INID £02 8L02/0ZIL0
60°LLE SHZLL bad a4 000 BEOZ/OZIS0 BN %SLS WL'0 J06920  92'68E'95 ZPND9629E 1S TYHINID $0Z 91L02/02/10
9€'180'L LE°58L 50962 000 LEOZIOZ80 e %SLS WLO ZVI9ZD eV OPO'L9 YESWSEZIE suan yd3INIo ¥0Z 8LOCIOZ/L0
227469 178 1 ¥4 FAra:i4 000 Fanirdierdral TeW %SLS L0 ¥Z2LIZD  BI 6BL'E0L YHIMSEZ9E sl wHANID 6l 8LOZ/0Z/L0
20’19 12151 18608 000 9E0ZI0Z/LL 1B %SLS WL'0 0PZZTO  52'2E8'98 SWIXZ0Z9E 1saBU] YHINID €61 8L0Z/02/0
86°8LE 19822 L0 000 LEQZINEO TeN %SLS WO'0ZLEIZD L9 POL'EE SHAAOEZ9E saseUl YHANTD 881 BLOZOZILO
cEBE BOELL P9 vEZ 00’0 9E0Z/0TE L 1B %SLG WL'OSLESED  OR'SEE'0S £ZEA06Z9E gaelll TyyaINTD L8l 8L02/02N.0
B69'EZ6 +EF0E GE'6LY g0 LEQTIOEN0 TeN %SLS W0 LLE92D  ELLIFVEL £40A0629¢ s8] TYHANTD 8l 8LOZIOZNO
9e'LLG BO'86L 8o'8le 000 9EQZI0T/LL TBW %6+'G WL'0 060929  06'Z281'08 MIN1ZOTE R TYHINGD 8.1 BLOZIOZILO
60°LLlB ZE60E LLI0% oD 9EQZ/0TISO e %EEE L0 980929 £LvOv'ALL MLXLGTOE 1Is2RIU TYHINTD €11 BLOZ/IOTILO
LE' 96 8z 9l £0°Eok oo LEQZ/LOCL TeW %018 WIL'0 L0ENDd  26'LLIL'6L L¥ZASEELE ERRIU TrdaNTD 8§22 BLOZ/SLILO
L2115 4§43 16°0vE 000 9€02/10/S0 TN %009 WL0EILNDd  £tgRde9 SINXLZELE 1S8R TYHINTD LZT BLOTZ/SLILO
GE'S9S L9°€9l vLLov 000 SEOZ/LO/SO e %009 WL'00ZEND  S1'ECe'0B BHIXLZELE 1IS2R TYYINID 92T BLOZISLILO
£2999 266l 16" L9t 00Q SEOZ/L0/S0 I8N %009 WL'0 £0BNDd  8L€60°'v6 99aXLZELE 15319 TYyaNTD ¢ BLOZ/GLILOD
L0258 B6SPEL [4 s 000 SEQT/LO/VO BN %009 WL'O BLENDD  vSZ8E'¥9 EXUALZELE iselaul  TedaNaD ¥ZT BLOTISLILO
66'61E 2001 SZTBT 000 SEOELOILO 1B %01°9 W00 60ENDd 85 LEL'BY oIvMmLEZELE 118U TYdINTD 2ZZ BLOT/SLL0
PSOrS Z0'68L 26158 000 SEOZ/LUIED TN %009 WL'0 LLENDD  #0'598°0L ZISMILEZELE IS TvdaNTD 12T 8LOTSLILD
FA:Jurad 94°9¢L 90°raT 000 ZEOTILONILL e W%sS LD 959NSd  OP'LobL9 EYMASELLE 1s8IsY Tyd3aN3ID Zie 8LO0T/SLILG
€198 ZZ'0LL 16952 000 |E0Z/1L0/90 e %SYS WL'OSLINDD  §9°98P'5S ZEUXLZELE 1$3I3U TYdaN3D L1Z BLOT/SLILD
FA A 9g'£ZZ [8-28:7 4 009 8EOZIL0/C0 1B %S9'S W0 BSENSd 9252901 S2IXLZELE isaiRu Tyd3aN3go 012 BLOZISLLO
£vsee LLTHG 99Z8e 00°Q LE0ZIL0/0L TR %S9SWLO LIELDA  ZL'8.2°v9 9ANA9BTLE 1S3l Tvy3INTD 80Z 8LOZ/SLILG
L8viT 0 821 SE'9vL 000 QEOTIL0M0 TN %G9S W00 LZENST BV ESS'ZE EWNXLZELE 18818U]  TydaNTD 20T BLOT/SL1L0
LYELY LIl 00'ZEE 000 /EQT/LOIFD TeN %SLS WL'Q LSBNDd  B80'662°02 293XLZELE 1I53)3u1 TWYINTD 102 8LOZ/SLILO
£5°50% £9/2Z1 68212 000 QEOT/LOMFD BN %SOS WLG6LENDS  61°E0V'09 653X ILZELE Isaiail TWH3INID 00z eLOZ/SULO
B 66V e PS1 SL'GPE 000 8E€0Z/LO/IE0 TeN %S9°S WL'0 TPeNDd  L5T86°v. BAFXLZELE IS8V TvdINTD 661 BLOZ/SLILO
S62LF S1°E91 0Z 60t 00’0 €021 0/70 BN %ELS WLORLENDS  0E6.2'99 SAVXIZELE sl TWHIN3D 261 810T/SHLD
¥ 155 59611 B66'L.E 000 LEOTNL0/S0 BN %S9S WL0 LI9VOd  0L'EZ608 PISAAEZLE IS8l WYIANID 161 BLOZ/SLILO
o' LE0'L S1'E96 vZ'84 000 2802110401 e %G9'S W00 £0ELD4 65 LSE'SE £27Q9871€ Isamul Trd3INID 96F BLOEISL/L0
vLL0L GE'5L2 BE'9ZY 000 LE0ZN.0/L0 e %GLS WL'0 POENDS  96'EEE'vE OADASEELE 151Ul vHaNTD 26l B10Z/51/10
8105 reePL ¥Z'00¢ 000 LE0Z/10/E0 e %G4S WD SZENDd  BS'B96'r9 $AIASECLE S IYHANTD LGl 810Z/5410
raa: s FAA4:1% 11°08¢ 00’0 LEGZIO/EQ TeW %606 WIL'D BO0LDS  S2'8S6°LE 132098218 jsaBIll YH3INTD 061 8L0T/SLIL0
16192 +0'E6 £6°'991 0’0 LEQZI 0RO e %SLS W00 00ELDS  PE'FL9°9E 658099ZLE salBl TvyaANID 681 BLOZ/SHILO
vievl 06°LE2 raLLS 000 LEQZIOML e %S9'S WL'0 S0ENDS S OBLTLL LZNASEELE = HANED 281 gLOZ/S51LL0
FAN 344 16'5PL 9ZELE (L] LEQZ/LOMO e %SLS WL0 BDENDS  6L°648'L9 OVNASEELE B8 IYHANTD 181 FLOESHILD
Lara:id S9°651 64°20E 00’0 LE0Z/10/90 e %SLS WZ'0 £0ENDd  SPZPE'0SL SONASEELE BRIl vY3INTD 081 8L02/5L/10
FA-R=Fa r1'ESL £5ELL [i] 9E0Z/10/CL BN %E6Y S WLOIDLWDS  SEEEL'PEL BNMASEELE sau8il]  TWY3INTD 091 8L02/51/10
SJUIWSAAUY [RIDUDE
YseD suondwespay [EETEIT] saseyding 3jeq uonduasag AjJunaag  enjep a1 Aunaag adf) pung # JUBWYSBAU| ajeq
Rumep Jed KT ‘suesy

pun4 Aq padnoug)
. 8102 ‘L€ Auenuer - 81.0Z '} Asenuepr pousd ayj 104

mﬂﬂsv% unsny poday uonel|Iouoday yses o
9BOW 'S 106 sn|ding - BuisnoH Yy IS sexa]

SAJRI208SY P uosIaged

BIL¥II0%IV § NODEVILLYG



e L IBA Bodey

0ZL DV Hd) OV ETL1 - BLOZ/SLIZ0 21 uny
dv
4SS1 onopiod
159z8'or 96°652'sL §670.8'ST 00'p leoL
15929 0r 96'§5Z'S) §67028'sT 000 Eong
BB LEL 22887 LO'BLP Q00 LEQZILO/LL TEIN %S9°S WL'0 ZL96Nd  Z6'€85'80L 0ovreLyLe 1S3 TYYINID 981 etoz/eiLo
¥Z'2L9 61092 LAY 000 9E0Z/LVLL BN %GL'G WL'0 S968Nd  82°LSY'06 ZZMACLYLE IS&E TYHINTD S8 8ILOL/ST/LO
12’6911 9g'82e SR'OPE 000 9E02/10/60 TeIN %SL'S WL'O ZZHSNA  8Z'28Z°08 ELANOLYLE 1832 TyYINID £81 8L0C/52/LO
95°C5y £8'091 €L'L6E 00’0 9E0Z/L0/60 1B %E¥'S IO FOGBND  69'825'99 BZMADLPLE 153181U]  TyHIANID SLb BLOZ/SC/LO
64°LES 1S'S61 BT'EVE 000 SE0ZNOMLL TeW %EF'S WLO9LIGND £6LLE'6L LAATLLPLE 1S912JU]  Tyd3INAD 0LL 8102/5Z/L0
29°829 B LLE j: 1 R=r4 000 9£02/L0/80 BN %EF'S WL'0 OFOBND  99'6E4'79 OYWOLLPIE 1523y TwH3IN3D 691 BLOZISENO
LLP0E 17901 €086l 0o'o 9E0ZI1L0ML0 e %EF'S W00 6868Nd  P9'ZS0'OF FLMADLPLE 1saBl|  WHAN3ID 991 810Z/52/L0
L8°289 0968 2'8zy 000 9E02/10/40 e %6F'S W0 LBEBND L Z'858°66 S58AN0OLYLE saiBll|  TWHINID L9l 810€/52/0
0z'zZer £1°'851 L'E8Z ov'o 9€0Z/10/50 e %6 WL'0 9S68Nd  B50°G0L'YE COVSOLPLE sl TwHaANTIO ¥3L BL0Z/S52N0
SY'668 BFSLE 16°08S 000 9e0z/10/50 T8N %6P'S WL'O LL6BNS LS LBZ'SEL GEMINOLYLE 1saB|  WUINID £91 BlOC/SEN0D
94°8lE aLgLL 09'%02 o0'o Qe02/1L0/F0 e %6F'S WL'O SLBENS  SO°BLO'PE PrNXG0¥LE 1sa8jul  JwyINTD L9l 8L02/52/10
0% 065 ESEEL LLLEY 000 8L0Z/02/01 1B %013 WI'0 500429  LE'E6Z'GR TIL9629¢ sedslu]  JydINID 0SE 8102/02/10
816l 69'e6l [+ T4} 000 8EOZ/0C/01 TN %O1L'9 WE'D P0OLZD  8SBP6'E0L £94196Z9¢ sl TwgINID 6vZ 8102020
296€9 FANE: ] 1585y 00'¢ BEOTN0T/IB0 BN %009 WI'0 819929 Z571v2'Z6 69YN96Z9E 1saBl) TYHINTD 8vZ BLOZ/OZ/L0
Ot 8ES aL’iSL vZ'I8E Q00 /E0Z/02/L0 TR %019 WL'0 6E69ZD  90°F9Y'GL 01249629¢ 15eJeld]  TYHINTD 2¥C BLOZ/OCIL0
LE'S8L CE'ZS 9621 000 BEOC/0C/SO e %00'9 W00 0SL02D  89°1pL'0T 41996298 s8Rl TvHIANID 9vZ LOZ/0Z/L0
[ 5] 08'v02 ¢S BEF 00'0 FEOTI0ZISO TN %019 WL'0 ZOERZD  ZVLLODLG TXMO9629E jsalalu]  TYHINAD S¥Z 8L0Z/0L/L0
[ 40484 8'9Z1 ZESRE 00'0 FEQZI0TISO 18N %009 WIL'D O9EBZD  EZELR'LS SAMO96Z9E 1s2iay) WH3INTD 2 BLOZ/0Z/ILO0
89°0LE QE'ESE 6g’lle 000 BE0Z/02/S0 1R %009 NGO B1E£82D  66°ZER'ER FMAQ9629E saBl vHINTD EPZ BLOZ/OZ/LO
8L L0t 82911 L5°L62 00’0 BEOZAOZ/ED BN %009 WL L1882D  SLLPI'BS SNAEI6Z9E 1520914) TYHINAD ZPZ 8102/0Z/L0
69'6ZS L8051 ZE'SLE 000 BEOZAOZIPD "1eIN %009 WL'0 S989ZD  9E£°605'5L SAMB9629E 15202 TVEINTD L2 8LOT/Z/L0
68°829 LTPBL FAs R 44 00°0 LEOZIOZIZL 1B %0L'9 WIL'D £E2hPED  L5TL0'88 SOTASEZ9E 15209 YdINTD B6EZ BLOZ/OZ/L0
PSLER LLVET 447965 00’0 BEOZHOZIZO BN %0L9 WL'O £PB9ZD 65 P60'BLL SAHASE29E 1SaleW|  TWHINID BEZ BLOT/I0Z/LO
ZT'9vs £0rggL 6L'8LE 0o BEOZ/OZIZO 1B %00°9 WL'0 OrE9ZS  Z9'5EL'9L Erexs6ese 1sale| TYHINGD 9€T BLOT/0Z/LO
£1°904 E£L'E0Z P0'E0S 00’0 BEOZOZ/LO 18N %0179 NL'0 B6ERSZD  607195'66 0JEXGEZ9E 1588l TYH3INID SEZ BLOZOZ/LO
56'08L F4: g ka4 £1L 655 00’0 LEOZIOZIEL BN %0L'9 WLO LLEZZD  BYEPIILL ZBHMSEEZ9E 1S313Y]  TYH3INID PEZ BLOT/OZ/L0
ST'EET L¥'29 ve'cal 0o BEOZAZ/LO 1B %00°9 W00 829929 89°L9E'CE FLHMSEZ9E 1sala . TYHIANID £€T 8L02/0Z/10
SEVIE EPLE 26'22Z 000 BEQZHOZ/LO 1B %0079 NO'O L2899 92 °G58'vY PHNMSBZIE 1S3 TYHINID ZEZ BLO0E/0Z/10
PEZLY L9°9€2 L9645 000 LE02/0Z/LL e %019 WLO OLBITD  ZLERE'ERL PSNSETIE 1S3V TYHEINID LEZ 8L02/0Z/10
re8rg 0lLEse PP GEE 00’0 LE0Z/0ZTL TeW %00°9 WL'0 L0B9Z9 68'6E8'6L PSONSEZ9E 1ssalY] YHINIS 6CC 8102/02/10
187108 9586 1€ 602 000 BEOZ/0ZIA0 e %S9°C W00 9L20TD  BS S69'SE BINDO6ZIE s Y43INID 0Z¢ 8102/02/10
FA:WANY FA 451 SZrIZ 000 8£02/02/50 1B %545 WO'0 £889Z9  06'89P'oF <dNa96Z9E gLl rHIANID 612 8LQZ/02/10
LL'P9E LS'PLL 02°05¢ 000 BEOZ/OTIVO TBN %S3S WL'0 998920  LP'PEO'vS SIrADS6Z9E S8 YHINID 812 BLOZ/0Z/LO
Liey 68°0E1 22962 000 BE0C/0Z/E0 TBN %G9S WIL'0 5589290 #9.86'C9 LVO6Z9E 1S3 YYINID L1 8LOZ/0Z/L0
FAVR XN ] L6°PEL SO'8Er Q0’0 BEOZ/OZ/Z0 YO SLSES WL'O PPEIZD  BLLIETS EWNAGEZIE S IYEINID 81Z 8L02/0ZN0
eV veT LE8 96°¥51 000 8E0C/02/L0 1BW %S9G WO'D 6E8929)  ZRPSYCE £3EXG6ZOE S8l WYHINID S1Z 8L0Z/0ZN0
[T L7191 LY OEE 00’0 LEQCI0EI0L TN %S9'S W0 $2L92D  LEOSH'LL 92.L05629¢ SaBlUl YHANID 12 8L0ZH0ZID
SIUIWISIAU| [BIDUDS
ysed suondwapay Jsaseu) $ISTYIING aeq uonduasaqg Ajundag  enjea al Aiunaag adA) pund # Jueunsaau) ajeq
Auney ed ‘SuRIL “sues)
8107 ‘1§ Aenuer - gLoZ ') Auenuer pousd ey so4
z 9Beg Hoday uoneypuossy ysen

snjding - Buisnopy 3y 1S sexa)



§TL 194 wodey

0zL(A dud) 3 SZLL - BL0TGL/Z0 Bleg uny
dv

4581 olojuad

Z¥'90€ 0eo Z¥'80e SL0°0 0S4°S SECZ/LOMPD LL'BEY'FY 6'825'¥Y Z22°G9E'r9 END  IVHINID 261 IAVYXLZELE
pLLEE 00°0 vLLZE 9100 000°9 8E0Z/L0/P0 OE'60V'PY LEESE PR PATN T ] END  TWHANID 22 TXVXLZELE
SLLLE 000 SLTLLE SLO0 059G LE0ZIL0/S0 09°806'6L 2L L00'64 FAN Y43 7] END  TWHINID 6L PISAMBZIE
LLEL 000 LEEL SLO00 0s8's LEOZNL0ML 05°680°91 89°/19'0L 2559’1 END  IWHINID 961 £ITQ9BZIE
6¥' L8 000 6¥'LBY SLOo0 0848 LE0TI0CITL vE'SES'00L S0°669'001 SE'YBP'001 IND  VH3INTD velL YHOMGEZ9E
80'60€ 00’0 80'60€ SLOo0 0sis SEOT/0ZIL L GE'L6S'PO 43°559'9 L9P05 ¥ IND  IWHINID €61 SWIAXZ029E
L0'SZy a0'0 0'6er SLO°0 08LS LEOTILONO £L'eER'eR €1'986'88 8.0L4'88 END  IWH3INID 261 MAJASEELE
£5°66¢ 000 £5°66C SL0°0 05L°6 LEOZ/LOIE0 95°2£5'29 6/°659'C9 59'605'Z9 END  TvH3INID L6L PAIAGEELE
¥Z'6.8 000 PZ6LE SLO0 osLs LE0T/VLO/E0 ¥9 L2264 1S L2E'6L BESPL'BL END  TVHINID 061 100088ZLE
8¥'89lL 00’0 8r'egl SLQ0 08L'6 LE0ZIL0/Z0 QL' EQZ'SE ZLSE'SE 80'1L91L'SE END  TVH3INID 681 65809821¢€
LO'6¥L 00’0 LO'6PL SLo0 0545 LEOZIOZTIVO BOBET'LE L9'9ZE'1LE 09°L60'LE IND  IvHINID 881 SHOADEZOE
80'¥EZ 00'0 B0'PET SL00 08L'S 9E0Z/0CEL 9L ET6RY L£7 19681 B9'ES8'8Y END  TVH3IN3ID 481 £ZAA0629E
SeeLy (1[0 ] SZT'RLIV SL0Q 089’5 LEOZ/LOML LE'86L°1L0L S6°E98'10L ELSLELOL ZND  Tvd3N3D 981 09YreLPLE
08'0Ly 000 08'0LY S1L0°0 0SL'S 9E0Z/1L0/LL £¥'EEB'SR Bl'Z66'SH 66°1EL°58 ZND  TVH3INAD S8l CEMAQLELE
687219 1] 68°L19 SL00 0sL'G LEQZIOZ/L0 59 LELGEL 9¥'552'62 TLIS6'aeL LND  IvH3INTID el SdTA0EZ9E
B88°9EE 000 88'9EE S100 0SL'S 9E0Z/1L0/60 STGPE0L 06'ZEL'LL vS POE'0L ZND  TVYHINTD £gl ELANOLYLE
Z2L°015 000 2L'018 S0 089'¢ LEOZ/LO/LL 62645801 S2'604'30L S8'LLY'BOL END  IVHINES f4:13 LZNASEELE
LSTIE 000 LSZIE SL0'0 QsL's LEQZILOIPO $6'OBZ'GY 96'94E'59 S0°'LET'S9 END  TvH3IN3ID 181 OYNASEELE
20°20E 000 20'20¢ §1L00 0sL's LEOZFLOM0 SLEOL'EY DE'0GL'ED SO0E0'ES END WHINID 08l GONASEELE
LLLLE 00'Q LLLE 5100 06¥'s 9E0Z/0T/L L LB'EEY'2E 28'0L2'28 [dXP5x4] IND  IvH3IN3D el OMNLZOTSE
[vrgh:t4 000 00’162 §100 06F'S 9E0ZA0/60 0L°0EL'EY 29'994'E9 6.°509'c9 ZND  TvH3INID Gil 6ZMNOLYLE
9€7905 000 9£°'30% SLo'0 06P's 9EQZ/OT/SO 9£'898'0L1L 0L'886'0LL BL8L90LL LNS  TYHINID il SMIXLOZIE
8E'IPE 000 BE'IFE SL0'0 06¥'S SEOZ/LOML L ZLOLL'YL 18'VI8'vL Ge'619'PL ZND  WH3INTD 0Ll LAATLLYLE
¥ ere 009 [ 47104 SLo'0 06b'S 9E0Z/10/30 6IELB'PS Z6'868'¥S By’ LZS'PS ZND  TYY3INTD 691 SYWOLIPLE
8S°L61 00’0 =11 5100 osF's 9E0Z/10/L0 Z¥LO2'EY BEGRI'CH SZBLLEY ZND  TWHANAD 89l LLMADLELE
8172 000 gl'ick 5100 0er's 9E0ZA0/L0 05 LSS'EE 09'119't6 OD'ZIE'E6 ZNS  TWHIANID 91 SSANOLYLIE
1292 000 pLTIT SL0'0 06F'S 9E02/L0/S0 68ZSS'LS £4'985'IS 00'0EP'2S ZND  WHINID ¥l ZOVSOLPLE
25645 000 25'646 SL0'0 06F'S 9E0Z/LO/S0 LL9LE'BZI 29'886'92E rL'0L9'9ZL ZND  WHIN3D £91 ESMWOLYPLE
60'P0Z 000 8002 5L00 061’ 9E0Z/L0/F0 917969' VY BY LZL'PP £€'609'vP ZNS  TWHIN3D 191 $rNXB0YLE
87141 000 £8'LLL 5100 06F'S 9E0Z/LOZL 98°929'LE va'0L2'IE 0L ISS'LE END  TvHIN3D 091 BNHASECLE

S)UBUWISBAU| [RIDUIG (PUNg

sbunes uonesday pawses pouag aey ajeq anjep yoog anjep yoog anea Jed adk) punyg # JuBUSIAU] disno
1saJ3)u| paysnipy  juoneZRIOWY 1s9s9)] S|YL PI3IA Juauny Muniel ebeseay Bupuwmbeg Bupug Aunses

sBujuieg 150193 parsnfpy

anjep yoog abeiaay uo pjaIA pouad
810z ‘L€ Asenuer - gL0Z ‘L Asenuer

- pung - pund Aq pajog

9 ‘unsn .
mﬁmmh_smp 1SNy sbujuaey ysasaju| )
SBOW 'S LOG snjding - Buisnoy Jv )s sexa] )

SJRIDOSSY § UoSIaNEd

SILVIJOESY ¥ NDSRILAV



§'E'L 18 vodey

0'Z¢ i3 Judial SZiLL - BLOZISLIZO Bleq uny
dv

4851 oliojHad

£6°062 000 £6°062 900 0009 SE0T/0ZIED GO'L5T'BS 9070t 8% 8L°581°85 NS  TWHINTD v 9NABEETIE
95°pLE 000 9S'viE 9100 000’9 9£0Z/02/p0 88'P00°'SL 60°€90'GL TLTIE'YL IND  TvH3IN3D %74 §4MB2629¢
BYEYY 000 BOEYY 9100 oot g LE0ZIOEIZL 9¥'VEE" LR 6.°59¢'/8 P4 N R AL IND  TVHIN3ID 6EZ SIIAGETIE
85°665 [elogs} BSGEG 9Loo ooL'e 9E0T/0TT0 LO°L0E" LML G668 211 SLEQL'ZL) IND  IVH3INZED 9ee BAHAGEZOL
S€°L4€ 00’0 SETLLE 9100 000’8 SE02/02/20 ZE'TLS'GL 9E7LE9'GL EEB9Y'SL IND  T¥Y3IN3D 9ee ErEXSEZoE
00'855 o 00'85S 9Loo ooLe LE0Z/0ZTL E0°906°601 68°L66'601 20044601 INO  TVH3IN3D vEZ CEHMEE6ZOE
057691 000 057581 9100 0009 BE0Z/02/L0 ZS'LPL'EE LFLOL'EE 0Z'001L'EE LND  Tvd3aN3D x4 PLHMSEZOE
ov'eee 000 9¥'TTT 9100 0009 BE0Z/0Z/LO 2S'8¥S'PY LEERS ¢ 8P CER P IND  TVH3INID (434 PHNMSEZIE
FA R 7] 00°n L¥viS 9100 ooL'e LE0ZI0TILL EB'SSLELL PELVTELL LEOWOELL IND  Ivu3INTD LE2 PWSNS6Z9E
8L'v6E [ 2L reE 9100 000'9 LE0ZAOZTL SL066'BL L8806 Z9'6E8'8L INO  TVH3INAD 62T YSONSEEZSE
61°20% 000 6l'cor 21070 001’9 LEOZ/LOZL LIE¥EL'EL BT 6L BL'0ZL'6L END  TVH3INID ;144 LWZASEELE
sgove 000 S0'0rE 9100 0009 8E0Z/10/50 £8'980'89 S0 18189 £2'600'89 END  TwyINID [X44 SINXLEELE
26°00F 009 Z6'00F 9100 o009 BE0Z10/S0 99°L52 08 85'2rE'08 16'¢81'08 END  TVH3NTD 9ze BHIXIZELE
5°99F 000 £5'99¢F 9L0'0 000’8 BE0Z/10/S0 9T EBEE6 15'205EE 6Z'C0E'E6 END  WVHINTD 22 990X12ELE
YLBYE 0o'Q vLEPE 5100 L] BEQZ/LO/L0 T LLG6 8P 99'Ze0'6r 26'1E6'8Y END  TWHAN3D 444 TIYMLZELE
B5°0GE 00'0 85'05¢ 2100 0009 BEOZ/LO/ED LE'LOZ'0L L6 VOE0L G6°GLL0L END  TYHINTD %44 ZIASMILZELE
S8'80Z 000 58'90C SL00 059°'s BEOZ/ZIB0 L& LYY Zhast'vt 96°L5E' vy LNO  TWY3N3D oz 6SHOBBZIE
1912 oo'e L9°ELT 5100 059'S BEOZHOTISO ¥1 95K S 26'E05'SY 05'08¢E'SY LNS  WYHINTD 61T ¢4NA962IE
99'6vZ 000 89642 100 059°S BEOZAOZ/FD 9L ¥EO'ES B60'6EL'ES 85'vZU'ES LND  YH3NID 154 ST AGS6Z9E
09'562 000 09'686Z 100 059’5 BEOZ/OZIC0 95'€9R'Z9 £TPIE'ZY PE'E8L'ZY LND  Yd3INTD FATA LENY36Z9E
ELLEY ao'o EliEy SL0°0 059's BEOZ/OZZ0 06'L96'T6 LE7280'CE AL ] LNS  TvHIN3D 9z EWASEZ9E
L0'Z0% 000 L0208 §L0°0 (Uil BEOZ/OT/LO 9L°6.8'86 6£'856'36 9T'55.°86 INE  TYy3INID SE2 04EX5629¢
E9PSL 00’0 £9'v5L 5100 0595 BEOZ/OZ/LO 08'PRR'ZE 69°L1B'ZE [£ AL AN LN©  WY3INID 134 EIEXGEZIE
LL'6ZE 000 LLG2E 5100 0598 LEOZIOTIOL £9'9Z1°0L L0'681°0L 9222004 INS  TVHIN3O 1424 92LDG629¢
09'8ri 000 09'srl 100 058 LE0ZIOZIE0 6¥'G09'LE 1678918 L6°195°LE LND  TYH3INID £lz LWNINS6Z9¢
ZV'EET L] Zr'Est 5100 059°S LEQENOMLL 2L LSE'D9 ZI'ZEE'08 9e'S6L°09 END  TYHINID [AYA EUMASEELE
0v'952 [ or'ase 5100 059G BE0T/LO/O0 $S'SOS'PS 865955 92’65 vS END  TYHIN3D e ZoMXIZELE
9E'E6Y 000 9EeeeY SL0°0 059's 8E0Z/L0O/Z0 SO ¥BR'YOL 80°200°S0L T8E8L V0L END  TYY3INID oz §L3X1ZELE
oroez 000 o108z SL0°0 059°5 LEQZ/LO/0L Z9GEL'BS LY EE0'09 0L'06%°65 END  IVHINID 602 SANQ99ZLE
LY'YIE 000 FA S 4% SL0°0 084S BEOT/OTIR0 BE'0L8'LI ¥L698'L9 0P'9LL 29 NS TYHINTD 802 BANHIEZIE
80'P6T 000 B0'P6T SL00 089'S 8E0Z/0Z/L0 62'9£5'29 82'585'29 £L85¥°29 INS  TVHINID fii4 BYBdO6Z9E
o155 %:74 000 06'€9Z SL0°0 058 8E0Z/0T/90 ZTE¢P1'SS £6'L81'GS 8¢'6.0°85 NS TYH3INGD S0Z ZPHOSEZoE
6ze6e 000 62262 5100 084S LEQZ/OZ/20 SE08Y'LY PEYELLY £0°666°09 NS  TYH3IN3D (4174 YESWS6Z9E
SZ2°9rL () ST°8vL SO0 059G BEOZ/LOMLO L66LLLE LVOBL'LE SLZa0'LE END  TWHINID 20z EWWXLCELE
ZE'LEE 00¢ ZELEE S10°0 08LS SE0Z/LOMO L980Z'69 Z2'982'69 18'rPL'68 END  TYd3INTD Log £93X1ZELE
6TLIZ 000 6ZLLT SL0Q 058's BE0Z/LOIYD BI'L56'8S 197120'68 PO'vES'eS END  TydanNao 0oz 663X1LZELE
[1 44 000 Ve SO0 059'S SEOZ/LO/ED 22702282 16'G0EEL LS)S1EL END  Tvd3IN3D 661 GHaxieele

SJUIUISIAU [B13LID Pung

sBujuen uonIIY pawe3 pouad ajey 81eq anjep yoog anfep yoog anjep sed adA) puny # JUBWISBAU) disno
s paisnipy  uonezHOWY sasepu| Syl PleIA usun) Aumey  sbelaay Buiuuibag Buipugy Aunoeg

sBusey ysosay paisnipy
810Z L€ Auenuer - g0z ') Asenuer

z abey sBujuieg ysassju)
snjding - Buisnoy Yy Ig sexa)



SE2 IBA uoday

0z @ dudl A SZL1 - BLOZ/SLIZO R1BQ Uny
dv

4881 ologiod

§Z°262'5Z 00’0 ST L6Z'ST 18] SLL06'ZPT'S 19'S8L'6PZ'S S9'6ZH'EET'S el

ST'L62°ST [ ] 5T'162'C2 sko'e SLM06°ZYT'S LI'SEL'GHT'S S9'6Z6'CET'S |ejo)qng

9€°0EY 000 e 4 910’0 0019 9£0Z/0Z/01 SH'85L'r8 vz 0za've 19°099'v8 LN TYd3INITD 0sZ ZANL9629¢
0s'ves 000 05'r2s 900 ooLe g9e0Z/0Z/0L 98°662Z'C0L ¥EbLEE0L SHLBL'EDL LND  TvHINID 6¢2 £9319629¢
09°25% og'o 09250 aLon 0009 8E02/0Z/80 LO'ZEY'LE vL'Z0L'LE L6°025°1L6 INS  TYHINID e 6HPNIGZIE
¥'08E 000 +H0BE oo ooLe E0Z/0Z/L0 LBOEG'VL L L1668 S50P8'vL INS  IVYY3INID ive 071LM9629€
0L2EL 000 0L°2EL SL0'0 0009 HE0ZI0ZIG0 9Z°TLG'9T 7626592 LL0vS9Z LN TYH3INTD 174 ¥L1909629¢€
8r'BEY 00’0 2o 4 9100 0049 9E0Z/0Z/S0 €4'¥RE'98 L 4'€ot'98 1685298 INS  TYH3IN3D Sve EXMO96Z9E
89°+6Z 000 89°PBT aLeo 0009 8E0Z/0Z/50 pA'¥LO'LS £LEI0'LS L6'9E6°9S LN TYHINID e BNMO96Z9E
29912 000 299l 9L0'0 0009 9E0ZI0ZIS0 L9'8LP'EY LO'8IV'EY LLPZEEr NS TYH3INTD £ve LHAQ96ZoE

SJURWISIAU] [BIBUIL) pUng

sBunues uoljasaoy pawieg polRd ey areqg anjep yoog BnjeA %oog anjep ted adA) pung # UBWISIAU| diIsnD
1SR pAISnipy  juopeziowy IsaJau) Siy| pimA Juauny umew  sBesany Bujuuibag Buipuz AQunseg

sbunwesy ysasu| paasnipy
81L0Z ‘L€ Aenuer - g0z ‘L Aenuep
¢ abeg sBues ysasau|
snjding - BuIsSNoy Py 15 sexa]



V

STILIVIJOSSY % NOSHIALLIVA

8107 ‘1€ Arenuef

SuIpua] 19211
J10day Jusux)SaAU] AYIUOA

uonelodion Buisnoy a|qepioly a1els

O@es)




SIAUIO0TH 208

R R ‘v baginan g stion ¢ u,fsggn;.éﬂ_ﬁaaﬁs.sps_ ‘sqof arow pue Fuunjaenuew sn Jayung Juidenoosus
e 00z o107 107 197 SIBNIBU PHLIOM Y] U1 3AIAWOI PuUE BAIIDRILIE JI0WS FWO0IS] SWOAXD INe
W0 G5 unp ey 23 036 unp s R 035 unp Jey ey GRS un[ ey 290 a5 unp oW SIIUBIND JBYIO 0] AANE(SY SN 3Y} 0F S]UQ SBY BSINOD JO IB||OP IDYEIM

IBYMBWOS ¥ "AIUBLIND UMD 11343 BUIA|IBPUN SJHOUBLIND JO 12)Seq J13Y] Ul anjeA
. 2A1E[B) |BR) SJUsBIdaL QSN AY) 2IUIS Aj2y1jun s1 3A0W B 4Ins ‘ng ‘padwin(
00055 puog-1 543 pue s30u §N Jo aseyaind s3 gnd Aew euIyd 1IRYY pArUIY

- Jowni y ja3Jew Jey) paju pue pajqled usaq sey Jedag Aunseau] ayl woy
0000 oh“ aBessaw ay3 y3noyije Jejjop Jaxyeam ARYSis e Aq palsooq aq pinod suodx]

Q00594

"Jedd e u) uorsuedxa Aiddns

1538319 53 U3IS SBY YIIYM 10 51 ucneyul uo |jnd 3aeSau v umop afesane
ay; 3und suodxa pue sa0JUBAUL AlUC Ylm (%9 TT) Suipuads |RIUIPISI) sem
se {%8°¢g} dn sem uondwnsuod |euosiad "yiBuaals peosq siyl s102jad 0sje 4ao

oy ) “Yiuow siyi dn 3.e sa|es asnoy Suipuad uaa3l “sqol pawielsns Jo ouapYuoI
B0S'8L uonezinn Apoeden Wﬂm oSmmaﬂ 40 |3A2] Yy e 0} Syeads N WOSLIOM SABM|E S| SBUIABS O UMOPMEIP 3y

00006+ S LEST6L HAGEAL 10 iy
i foos Lt XY Buimoud aue ssapinoad anaas pue sy Supnpoad

spood ayl Yy1og "saMRn pue uonepodsuely ‘Sulinidenuew ‘apes ‘Alsnpul
uipping ay3 ur dn Buimoys Aulouods auy) ssoloe sieadde yimods qor

‘S MOjaq a1ed Juawiojdwaun 3yl 3.l pue Y1Buans £T0Z 4O LOIIENULUOI

e 03 pea| Aew wiojs. xe3 sy; Aq paiesauad sayy aem [euoippy “(ssa) Suiaes
pue) 310w Buipuads s1 oym JAWNSUOI 3Y) pasnds AjuieLIad Sey 3 UoiENUI
01U paay Aews yaiym sadem Jaydiy o3 spes| Jua|el 1eys 103 uonnadwod Suy
ISNQOY "SINJOM paules) 2o} Buthad (s ase siaAojdwz pue dn ale sauees
pue sadepn "yimoad pue uoiyeyul ‘s|josied 2q 0) 3NUNUOD S10308) A3y BY )

“Awiou0da ayj o uoisuedxa pos e InoyInoayl s100ys
ua3Jd jo p|a1y B MOYs 5101821pul Jo 33uesapuodaild e pue yoog adiag s pa4
Byl "8s5Jn0d-}o 0F Jou PMOYS UOEZIEWIOU ADES]S pUE MO|S 0] UOIRIBIP

3Y3 INg “|[SMOd JIEYD 0 UB|[3A JIBYD WOJ) LOIUSURIL] YIO0WS Jley) e osje
5| 5|e0d isnipe 10 wuyje o1 pasn Ajjewiou st yaiym Junaaw Aenuer JN0S 341

jJE3A VOISR

B U] Al|2122ds3— 1aA3MOY SJUIWINAUS pUe 2JNJINIISEIUI UDDMIDG 3)11eq
sley Juawiodwsun SN pajuejeq e 3uiaq dn pua Aew 3 uoiesSiwwn 01 Suipad 1qap Byl woyy peaye

s331eq MU pue #2e)d Ul Wwi0)aJ xe) yyum Jydinods 3y3 o3ul paddals yiuow syl

sey Anjod jeasyy ‘uolieznewlou spiemol Aemyied jonpoiB, e suleIsns salasay

|eJ3p34 aY) S8 JWAY] B UIRWIL [|1Mm $33€ MOF A[|edU0ISIY SIUM PUY SN20}

Y ulew S1NEW 3y uaaq sey Adjod Aleyauow ‘sieak uaaas 1sed ayy Jog

WLI0JSY Xe| pue SJ00YS U0




‘MO|s

0] YAJHIP 39 |IIM JUBWUQIAUR YImoud siyl ul sBuuies anpisod Alsnondiquieun
pue ymosd |eqojd paziuoayauds 343 1ng sydiy 20181y 18 Apealje 35004q

133Je 320)s e se uassa Aew uonendal-ap pue s1ND Xe} 3Jes0dI03 S, WI0BI XE|

('v10Z/Y

J0us sa1eJ 35aySiy S 1e Spuels mou JeaA-0T JY)) Sudlasan0s Jaylo Jsuiede
AN[BA JAIEIDJ $,8AIND BY) UG JUSPUSHIP — JBYLINY S31RJ 35IRJ PINOD YIIYM

amn3 a3 03 Aiddns ppe [pm siy3 ‘suonisod Alunaas 30 ulInd J1ay) jo ved se
Ainseai) Ag suoiisod awos jo Buuniew/3ses(al ayl Yyum Suoly ‘s|pg-L |jIm se
YIuow e uol|ig z$ Aq 2SERUINU ||IM SBI0U JEIA £ PUB Z Y[ 'SIIIAIDS |BI20S JBYI0
pue AJUN22g (21305 ‘31epay ul s|[ejIoys 138png Yalew 0} JApJo U] uol||lg 994
Ag 3seausun [m suonane (Jeak gf 03 §) selinseaa| palep 3uoy ‘§OOZ FIUIS 15009
1541} S11 Ul JEDA S14) suodne s31 Buisealdul 3G [Ivm AINSEa.) "1503 B 1 $303
SIUAWAA0ICWI IINIDNIISRIL PAPAAU YINw oy suejd a3yl pue wioal Xej ay)

18yl 51 POOT MOH jSaauIm}
224} saahojdwa sy Buinig s1 spuelg $59)S0H udaa pue sadem Jaysly jo paisooq
aney x3pe4 pue DewW(ep) Bjddy ‘saem pue syayaied ul Joedwi 513yl umoys
sdesjenuue 1e parsnipe Ajeunseag SIAJELY JUOLIF [ NERING () >Umw.~_m SARY SWIOJDJ 2U) >__mu_um@EOQ ‘siejjop sn Aenedas 0y paudisap
I YOIy SWIORE XBY SN 3Y) AQ paldaje 3q 05| |[IM 5133JBW [BUOIBUIDIW|

LI0T 9noe ET0Z POz

‘SN Y3 IPISINO SI1JeW Iyl 03 uondo ue Burjeass sayel 13yl SIBS PINOYS YIIYM
UORETIEWIIOU SPJRMO] JJOM O] SNULIUOI JBAMOY |EJ3URT Ul SHUBQ BJUSD

t 2|1 "SeJp 01 59NUIIUCI pue INOPUEBY 1X3U J13Y3 128 03 Ajuewiid Ing saanseaw
Aluaisne |euoiyppe dWos passed sey 9333J9 "AJUIBLISIUN SPPE Y2IYM X3.g
Buiwoadn Jiay) Jo) NN 3yl Ag pred aq o) suoisseduod pasnbal ay) Swddn s n3
ay) wawiojdwaun yAiy Ajlusogqnis pue uoniejul Suimols yum ajpiny solew
e 5By g23 3yl Ing SN Y3 Yum Juoje sajed s ISIBL 01 3SIN0D UO |35 S| epeues

I

0
1
4
H..u = d
.m_. v "$3ILWOUOD3 [EUONELIAII UC puadap 23193p UIRLIID € 0] PUE 133134 J0S |IM
! 5
5

3AINI 31 4O UOIIILAN BY] PUB SAYIY AY ING ‘%SZ°Z 01 238 JYIIISA0 3} aye)

JIta JB3A SIYY SAIY BIY) 'SINUNUOD YImodE siyl 1 2jqeuoseal aq o) sieadde
Jayenb Suipadasd wouy adueys R 4o [eay YHYM 33NIWWIOT Y] WOL) YIIBN UE QY %5Z°0 B Ul JjIng ApeaJje sey 1a)Jew
YL W30ds 3y Ll UBWA [IM JWOS YL HooINo 3a13is0d ([BISAD 3Y) YUAR

saguey) J11SaWO( pue Jeuolleulalu|




A0 0] SPUN- pao — 8AIND PISIA |1 - SIBY YIUOH JO pUT

JA0E 2401 IAG 14z I£1 ourg owe spunJ paJ
= . A s 2 L —+ 900°0

| 9050

91-23(]
Li-1ey

9%00°T

Li-unp ———

9,051

%00

O O OO C .~

9%05e

9%00°E

%0S'¢

"34RINy A3 Ui UoiSOd SIYL JUIYI-aa ABW ABY| [3JBINSIL 13ABU 1M UOKIIE|IUI JeY ) Bullaq 34e oym $1035aAu) Suo) 31e21purl pua SUo) LWIOGENIS BY) -
"adueyd A|paagnopun |Im siyy AjJeuocijeusalul
dn Bulrcw aJe s3jel Jey) MON "121e3|D S3W03g 21n1did Auy) RUn Ysed pjoy S101SaAUI se AJulenasun jeaod-038 pue [e)wou0da |eqold Suinunuod
(a} pue sanneusalje jeuonewsaiul ueyy JayBiy aue pas ayl AQ pal SN oyl ul saled () $139331 YIUOW-aa1y3 Ay3 03 Spuny 1SILIaA0 WIOJY UOISISAUL YBIS 3y «
‘(suonoe Buises jewlou 1oy wood SuiAIE) 21nINg 3YI Ul JNII0 PINOYS UBIS5IIA
€ J1 uolysnd AJeIauow e a)eald 0} auisap s Yim Buoje AWouo32 3yl Ul YISURUIS Y] JO MIIA 5,paJ BY) AG USALIP Al S| PUS LIOYS 3Y] Ul SACW 3Y] «
"[2A3| 2unf s11 aA0qe Ajpydis Ajuo Ajusogqnas sAeys pua Buoj ayy Ing dn panow aney s33ed
Hoys ays gTQT Ul sawi slow 33Jy) |elualod e 31es spung pa4 3yl asies 03 19811 uo 2q 03 sieadde pue JaQUIFIBQ Ul SIIBI PASIE DAIISIY [RIIP2 YL SY =
*8TOZ 03Ul panuljuod sey aand (dasls ss3|) SuiusiIely B 104 LIBOUOD AY)L -

Y E aouejeg 1ysty put4 01 9188nAS sa1ey




o
A > S BN
L L MR & &
RS G
+ Q
L &
.
T 00
)
L &
" e ‘uoos SuIwo? spuny xe3 ay3
! - O Joj uejd pue saJuejEq YSED 9INPaJ 03 BWIR S} =
"$jUeq Y3 SPISINO 3|qeIeA. I50Y]
SNSJAA $318J YOI 2} MIIASI 1SNW SUOAIDAS
%0001 pue s}S0dap Mau u) pajsasajuiun ulewa. syueg .
vaa

'sjood 3yl 1534 |[IM Je3A 3uo puoAaqg
sajey uaded |B12)3WWOD 0] $53278 YlMm
950y} 10§ Aj|e1dadsa ajqejieae aie SaAlleUI)|e
WLI2] JI0YS PUB 3A0W S,p34 3yl YUMm
dn sA0W 01 3NUIUOD $BJBS WISY-HIoYS AIDA DY) =

‘SUOIIPUOD 19)JEW 3|11B|0A 0} ISn[pe Jalaq ued
oljoj1i0d PalyISIaAIR B 3sneaag Alluniew agelane
P3(]043u02 e pue uolledo||e Jasse jewdo

Joj oljojuiod unoA smanal Auelsuod yd

8107 ‘1€ Arenuer Jo Sy

01)0J140d JNOA




8L JeA poday
0'¢L (tWd Jdd) Wd
d¥Y

7aS1 onogiod

L0651 - LOZGLZ0 meq uny

L0'S1 2L0Z/S1/20 IQSL 138 ‘paiepdn eleq
810Z/1£/L0-810Z/10/1L0 potad Bupoday

13040 [BIOUBLIY JBIUD YNWS BPUIS

"Apog Buiwaach sy) 0} amnsoasip Ny spiacid o} oljoplod ay) Jo suonejuasaldsl aydesd se jjam se “podes uogoesuey B 'pouad eyl Jo pus ay) Joy Nodal AI0JUSAU) PIIBISP € ‘MAIBA0
Arewwing Juswabeuew e spnjoul spodal ay) "spuBLSaAUI Jo ollopued SuoneIcdIoD Ul UM ANANSE pue uomsod ay) jo uonesodios Buisnoy ajqepioyy 918)S sexai ay) jo Apoq Buiuiaaob ay) uuol
Ajiny 03 s3pio w9y 3y Aq paunbai jou uoneuLolw (BlUaWSIddNS Jayo osie spodal Yyl (8GZZ AP0 1A0D) SEXS]) 19V JUSLWISSAU] SPUNL SNqNd 3y} Ylim SOUBPIOSOR Ul paywgns aJe spodal Bumoiloy a4

000

00°0

JEBA JUBLINYD

9jeqg o1 129, [easiy

Buipu3 yuop g Lenuep

sbuutes je10]

. . SiUsuSIAL)
000°0 3 3 %00°001L SPEIL'ELL SPEALELE SFEIL'ELL
0000 I 3 00°00L SPEILELL SYFESLELL SFEILELL SUNCIoY Hueg
‘AInb3 §9¢ RAumen wia oljiopiad  anjep onjeA anfep SUWNSIAU|
WA 0} sAeq 0% joog iRl ed

9vi8L X1 ‘unsny

GBl |ung

24O 'S 106
$8JRID0SSY P UosIoled

8102 ‘L€ Aienuep
Arewwng oljosod
juswabeuey oljojuod
weiboid Buipuan 19a11Q - JHVSL

FALVIIOREIVY § NRTVILIV



SEL 19 Hodey
02 L{1S 4ud) 1S
d¥

TASL Qllopiod

LL:S) - BLOZ/SHZO @1EQ Uny

} 000’0 a0°00L SKEILELL SY'E9L'ELL 1 abessay pue (g0
3 0000 58'59 PSELE'YL PE'EL6'PL } Eogng
} 0000 5859 PSELE'PL PEELERL I SjURGITY jueg
aAlasay Juawede|day SMOJIIAL pung
0 0000 00’0 000 000 b eyo1qng
0 000°0 o0'Q 00°0 000 L s|UNEEY Yueg
buneiadQ sSMO|ip pund
] 0000 §5'1E vL'689°6E ¥L1°688'sE t eyoung
L 000'0 SS1E vL'688'SE v2°688'6E L SJunoIOY Jueg
aaJesey eIUR|g BMY pund
I 0000 0wz 210962 LI096'T 3 jeyoqng
I 000°0 09z £1°'096° ZL'096'E I SRy uey
old uojezi|iqels pooysoqybiaN pung
Ajunie o) S9€ WLA onopod anjea yoog anjep SUIWNSIAUY adA) Ajundeg
sheqg ebriony obesoay 0y Jed Jo squinn
pun4 Ag padnoug
- . 810Z ‘L& Auenuer
mmﬂ.ﬂ_ qw% unsny adA] Aq fiewwng
9R4OW 'S 106 weiboid Buipua pona - JHVYSL

$3J810058Y 3 UosIeped

FILVIIDREY W NERYNIILVS



GEL I Lodey

S0'St - BLOT/SL/Z0 ‘eQ uny

11204 dudhd
dv
1JS1L ooy
3 000’0 000°0 L1'096°2 L1096 21°096'2 sbeiony pue SWAWNSIAU| jeI0 L
b o000 0000 110962 Z1'096' L1'096'2 abriaay pue |Rjoiqng
I 21'096°Z LL°096'2 LL°096'2 0L0Z0ZIvD Bunoayd yueg 1s0u4 93 ZE665EL6S
SIUNOINY yueg
Aumen ajeq 9% 09¢ ayey anjep 1oep anjep Jed anjeA yoog aeq 1anss| # lwaunsaau| disnd
o) sfeq Aumey  WLA WLA waungy aseyaind
&
810z ‘L€ Asenuep

rs8L X1 unsny

6| |ung

SB4ON 'S LOB
S9IRID0SSY P UoSIANEd

pung Aq sjuaw)saAaul
old uonezijiqelg pooyioqybiaN - SN pungd
wesboid Buipua yoaa1qg - JHVYSL

FILYIIOSSY ¥ NORTFIIEYL



§'E°L 49p poday
LD ) 1

S0°S1 - BLOZ/S 1420 BleQ uny

dv
aS1 ollopod
] Q000 000°0 ri'688'SE P2'688°SE vL688'GE abesaay pUe SjuswSEAu] [€j0L
I 0000 0000 vL688'SE PL'688'SE r1'688'E abeaaay pue |ejoiang
i PL'688'5E ¥£688°SE ¥4 688'SE S102/82h0 BuppoayQ yueg 1s0i4 051 LYPZELLES
SNOIDY Nueg
Runiew aeq 59¢ [1:154 aey anjep Jessep anep Jegd anjep joogq aleq Janss| # jusunsaau| disnd
o] sheg Aumepy WNLA WLA LN aseyaing
]
810Z ‘L€ Asenuer

Z abeg

pun4 Ag sjuawsaaul

anIasay BIURIg BNY - STUGY puny



§E'2 IaA vodey
VELOd Aud) 14

S0°S1 - 8L0Z/SL/TO RIRQ Uy

dv

10S1 oopod

4 00070 0000 oo'o 00'0 000 abeisAy PUB SJuBUSEAU) |23 L

] 00070 0000 00 00°0 00°0 abesaay pue |ejoIqng

L 000 000 000 LLOZILLILL Gupjoey) yueg 1soi4 80l 95€105165
SIUNOYY yueyg

Apumew ejeq 59¢ 09¢ o)ey anjeA 19MJeRN enfep Jeq anjeA joog aeqg Janss| #udUNSRAL| dIsSnd

o] sheq Auney WLA WLA jueuns aseyoing

8102 ‘1€ Aenuer

¢ abeq

pung Aq sjuswiseAu]
Buneiado SMOIIM - H3JOM Puny



£ 4 1A woday

LLa(ld dud) 14 SOSL - 8LOZ/SL/IZO Aeg uny
Jv
4s1 oogod

3 00070 000°0 YSELE'PL YSELE'YL PSELE'YL sfieleny pue susunseau) e10L

L 0000 0000 PSELE'PL PSELG'PL PESLE'PL abesaay pue [mogng

3 PSEL6 L PSELE'PL VEELEFL LLOZILLILL Bunioeyd yueg 1s0igy B0l ¥ZTLIOGL6S

SIUNOIDY ULy

Aumey aeq 59¢ ose ey anjep 1IN anjep Jed anjeA yoog aleq 1anss] {## JwsungsaAu| dISnNd
o] sheqg Aunmey WLA NLA wauny aseyding

t abegd

8102 ‘i€ Aienuer
pung Aq sjuswilsaau|

aA19S3Y Judawade|day SMOJ|IM - HM Pund



Tab 1



BOARD MEETING
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
Held at the offices of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
2200 E. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.
Austin, TX 78702
February 15, 2018 at 10:30 a.m.

Summary of Minutes

Call to Order, Roll Call
Certification of Quorum

The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the
“Corporation”) was called to order by Bob Jones, Chair, at 10:45 a.m., on February 15,
2018, at the offices of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation, 2200 E. Martin Luther
King Jr. Blvd, Austin, TX 78702. Roll Call certified that a quorum was present.

Members Present

Bob Jones, Chair

Bill Dietz, Vice Chair
Gerry Evenwel, Member
Jerry Romero, Member

Staff Present

Betsy Aldrich, Senior Accounting Manager

Celina Stubbs, Manager, Asset Oversight and Compliance

David Long, President

James Matias, Senior Manager of Asset Oversight & Compliance
Janie Taylor, Executive Vice President

Katie Claflin, Director, Communications & Development

Lacy Brown, Executive Assistant

Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary/Manager of Communications and Development
Melinda Smith, Chief Financial Officer

Michael Wilt, Manager of External Relations

Nick Lawrence, Controller

Guests

Celeste Schaffer

Karen Kennard, Greenberg Traurig, LLP
Tim Nelson, Hilltop Securities

Public Comment

No Public Comment was given.



President’s Report

Mr. Long referred the board to the program and financial reports included in the board packet
and noted that there were no exceptional items in the reports. He then provided an update on the
TSAHC Loan Committee which met in January and February, noting that Mr. Romero is the
board representative on the Committee. Mr. Long explained that there were no new loans which
required consideration however the Committee review program reports and to take action on
pending items related to existing loans. Mr. Romero added that the Committee reviewed the
processes for making loans and followed up on loans having problems to identify additional
steps that can be taken to ensure that risks are minimized.

Mr. Long provided a quick summary of 2017 homeownership program for the board. The
corporation provided $35 million in down payment assistance grants to homebuyers and
approximately $850 million in mortgage loans. Mr. Long compared the 2017 loan volume to the
2016 volume, approximately $240 million. Mr. Long noted the phenomenal opportunity the
Corporation had to serve so many people in Texas, as well as the capability of staff to step up to
the opportunity when it arose.

Mr. Long recognized the top lenders: Ms. Stacy Lynn Schriever and Ms. Ginger Smith with
Premier Nationwide Lending, and Ms. Liz White with PrimeLending. Mr. Long also recognized
the top mortgage companies: PrimeLending, Fairway Independent Mortgage Company, and
Guild Mortgage Company. Mr. Long reminded the board that this information can also be found
on the Corporation’s newly updated website.

Mr. Jones asked for a report showing the increase in activity in 2018 and Mr. Long said that it
could be provided. Discussion followed about the volume generated by TSAHC programs
working with the new master servicer, Lakeview Loan Servicing. Ms. Taylor added that every
month a report was provided to the board showing monthly activity under the homeownership
programs. She also noted that Ms. Crim created a report showing all activity in 2017 that could
be provided to the board, along with a press release that was issued to announce the top lenders
and mortgage companies.

Mr. Long informed the board that the homeownership team had conducted “Overcoming the
Down Payment Hurdle” classes in January, and would be attending the Laredo Homebuyer Fair
in March. Mr. Long then noted the Corporation received a $10,000 grant from JPMorgan Chase
in support of the Housing Connection Training to be held in June and also received an additional
$2,900 in gifts in support of the Housing Connection trainings from individual of mortgage loan
officers, and realtors.

Mr. Long informed the board the Corporation released its new website on January . He thanked
Ms. Ross and Ms. Claflin for all their hard work and noted that staff worked with a third-party
firm to make the updates, but the majority of the work was completed by staff.

Mr. Long provided a summary of the conferences and meetings attended by staff during the last
two months. Mr. Long, Ms. Crim and Mr. Almquist attended the National Council of State
Housing Agencies (NCSHA) HFA Institute in D.C in January, noting that Mr. Romero also
attended. Mr. Danenfelzer and Mr. Wilt represented the Corporation at the first session of the
Rural Housing Preservation Academy held in San Antonio. Mr. Long noted that this initiative

2



was a partnership between the Corporation and the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas to help
community partners and other organizations preserving USDA affordable rental housing. Session
two of the Academy would take place in Temple later in February. A total of six sessions were
scheduled around the state of Texas. Mr. Long and Mr. Wilt attended the quarterly meeting of
the Texas Interagency Council of Homelessness in January that was held in Austin.

Mr. Long and Ms. Cynthia Leon attended the Texas Community Capital (TCC) board of
directors meeting and strategic planning meeting held at the TSAHC offices. TSAHC’s role with
TCC would be discussed under tab item 3.

Mr. Wilt hosted the Kickoff meeting of the Urban Land Institute’s Strategic Affordable Housing
Council at Corporation’s offices.

Earlier in the month, Mr. Matias and Mr. Long attended the groundbreaking ceremony for the
Glenn Heights Palladium Apartments. He noted that the project had received $18.5 million in
bonds through the Corporation for construction of a new 270- unit multifamily housing
community in Glenn Heights, Texas.

Mr. Long spoke briefly about the National Academy of State Health Policy. He stated that Texas
was as one of five states invited to participate in their Health and Housing Institute and TSAHC
was asked to partner on the initiative by Texas Health and Human Service Commission.

Mr. Long stated that Mr. Matias had attended the NDC training Minneapolis in January for
financial underwriting for multifamily properties.

Mr. Danefelzer attended the IRS Advisory Committee on Tax-Exempt and Government Entities
meeting in Washington D.C., Mr. Long noted that Mr. Danefelzer served on the subcommittee
related to tax-exempt bonds. The subcommittee would issue a report that would include
recommended changes to the IRS’s Voluntary Compliance Program for Issuers and Conduit
Borrowers.

Mr. Danefelzer, Mr. Matias, and Mr. Long attended the Re-imaging the American Dream
Housing and Economic Development Opportunities Summit that was held at the AT&T
Conference Center. The summit which was put on by the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and
HousingWorks Austin focused on the challenges and opportunities creating equal access to
affordable housing and economic opportunities for all.

Mr. Long introduced TSAHC’s newest employee, Lacy Brown, who would be taking over as
Corporate Secretary in the coming months. He noted that as an officer, her role as Corporate
Secretary would require board approval, which would be on the agenda for the March board
meeting.

Mr. Long also recognized the Corporation’s two other new employees who would be introduced
at the next board meeting, Ms. Holsinger and Ms. McGrew. Both were part of the
homeownership team.

Mr. Long introduced the professionals in the audience including Ms. Kennard, General Counsel
with Greenberg Traurig, and Mr. Nelson, financial advisor with Hilltop Securities.



Mr. Long noted the date of the Corporation’s next board meeting which was scheduled for
Thursday, March .

Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting
held on December 14, 2017.

Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting held on December 14,
2017. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was
given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Texas State
Affordable Housing Corporation’s 2018 Annual Action Plan.

Mr. Wilt explained that the board approved the action of posting the draft Annual Action Plan on
the Corporation’s website at the December board meeting. The Action Plan was made available
for public comments on December , and the public comment period was scheduled to end
January but was left it open until January . The reason for the extension was that the public
hearing had to be postponed from January until January due to inclement weather.

Mr. Wilt noted that the Corporation did not receive any public comment, however staff made
some updates to the plan between the December Board Meeting and the February Board
Meeting, specifically updating the number of homebuyers assisted in 2017 to reflect all the
activities during the calendar year. Mr. Wilt noted the Corporation assisted more than 5,700
homebuyers in 2017, which was almost triple the number served in 2016.

Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the Corporation’s 2018 Annual Action Plan. Mr. Dietz
seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken
and the motion passed unanimously.

Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Action by the Corporation
related to Texas Community Capital.

Mr. Romero reminded the Board that he had been representing Corporation’s board on the Texas
Community Capital (TCC) board for a number of years. The original objective for the
partnership between the Corporation and TACDC related to TCC was to create an organization
that could obtain CDFI status and have access to related funds for Corporation’s programs.
Originally the Corporation gave TCC two years to achieve this goal; however the first
application was not successful. Mr. Romero noted that TCC had created a Community Loan
Center (CLC) program which was a great program utilized by other nonprofits across the state;
unfortunately the CLC program was not related to affordable housing. Mr. Romero informed the
board that he would be stepping down from the TCC Board, but Ms. Leon would continue to
serve as the Corporation’s board representative on the TCC board. Mr. Romero proposed a time
period of 180 days for TCC to seek or attain CDFI certification. If they didn’t, then Mr. Romero
proposed that TSAHC end the partnership with TACDC related to TCC. Discussion followed
and Mr. Long reiterated Mr. Romero’s proposal that would allow TCC to work towards a CDFI
application. Mr. Long informed the board that a consultant had reviewed TCC’s eligibility and
capacity for becoming a CDFI. Mr. Long noted the potential benefits to the Corporation being
able to work with TCC should it received CDFI certification and to wait six months and see if

4



the application was submitted and approved. Mr. Romero agreed with Mr. Long and added that
after six months the Board could revisit the partnership and determine how best to move forward.

After some further discussion, a timeframe of six months was decided on and Mr. Danefelzer
was selected to represent TSAHC on the board.

Mr. Jones made a motion to approve this action by the Corporation related to Texas Community
Capital. Mr. Romero seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was
given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

Tab 4 Presentation and Discussion of, and Possible Approval to Publish for Public
Comment, the Texas Foundations Fund Draft 2018 Guidelines.

Mr. Wilt approached the Board asking for approval to publish the Texas Foundation Fund Draft
2018 Guidelines. He stated that with the approval, the public comment period would begin on
February and close on Monday March . The public comments received would be reviewed and
the guidelines would be brought back for the Boards approval in April. Mr. Wilt pointed out that
the Draft Guidelines before the Board reflected a matching-grant structure that was now being
used for the Texas Foundation Fund. Under that structure, partners would be selected every two
years. All selected partners are eligible for matching grants to supplement public and private
funds that they raise to support their own programs. The programs for eligible matching funds
remain the same as the prior guidelines and include critical repairs of single-family homes or
supportive housing services that help families and individuals avoid homelessness and
unnecessary institutionalization. The threshold criteria for how partners are eligible can be found
on the bottom of page 1 and the top of page 2.

Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the publishing for Public Comment of the Texas
Foundation Fund Draft 2018 Guidelines. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Long asked for
public comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a $100,000 commitment
from the Corporation as part of a grant application to the Rebuild Texas
Fund to support a special disaster recovery round of the Texas Foundations
Fund.

Ms. Claflin started by providing the Board with background information about the Rebuild Texas
Fund. TSAHC and Enterprise Community Partners would submit a joint application to the
Rebuild Texas Fund to support the special disaster recovery grants program. The program would
provide grants of up to $50,000 to nonprofits providing critical home repairs and other housing
services to households affected by Hurricane Harvey. Mr. Claflin then stated that TSAHC and
Enterprise staff had agreed not to brand the program as a special funding round of Texas
Foundations Fund or as Enterprise’s grants program, but instead to give it its own name and
identity and then promote it as a partnership between TSAHC and Enterprise. The grant program
would include technical assistance to help expand grantees capacity. It would be focused towards
smaller organizations and grants amounts. Larger funding amounts could be sought directly
from Rebuild Texas or other grant-making organizations. Under this application, TSAHC and
Enterprise would each receive $500,000 to administer grants, with a $1 million total. TSAHC



would focus on critical home repair, while Enterprise would support other housing assistance
programs.

Ms. Claflin pointed out to the Board that the application with Rebuild Texas was contingent
upon a $100,000 commitment from TSAHC in match funding. This would give TSAHC
$600,000 to administer for critical home repair. If the application was approved, TSAHC would
create guidelines for administering the critical repair funding which would be presented to the
board for review and possible approval at the March Board Meeting.

Mr. Romero made a motion to approve $100,000 commitment from the Corporation as part of a
grant application to the Rebuild Texas Fund to support a special disaster recovery round of the
Texas Foundations Fund. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public
comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

Tab 6 Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2017 Annual Performance
Review of the President of the Corporation and related actions.

Mr. Romero made a motion to go into closed executive session. Mr. Evenwel seconded the
motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the
motion was approved.

Tab 7 Closed Executive Session — Discussion regarding the Evaluation and Annual
Performance Review of the President of the Corporation.

Mr. Jones called the board into closed meeting in accordance with Texas Government Code
Section 551.074, personnel matters. The time was 11:41am. The board ended the closed meeting
and resumed the open meeting at 1:00pm. Mr. Jones stated that no action was taken during the
closed meeting. Instead, the board discussed the president’s annual performance evaluation.

Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the review and recommend an increase in salary for the

President based on his performance. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for
public comment and none was given. A vote was taken on the motion and it passed unanimously.

Closed Meeting

Refer to Tab 7

Open Meeting

Mr. Long stated that he would keep the board informed about the March board meeting. He
thanked the board for their time at the meeting today.

Adjournment

Mr. Jones adjourned the meeting at 1:02pm.

Respectfully submitted by
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary




Tab 2



#373625762v2

CERTIFICATION

THE STATE OF TEXAS

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE
HOUSING CORPORATION

(Voo lVop Vs Vep]

I, the undersigned officer of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the
“Corporation”), do hereby certify as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) convened on March 22,
2018, at the Corporation’s offices in Austin, Texas, and the roll was called of the duly constituted
members of said Board, who are as follows:

Name Office
Robert Elliot Jones Chairperson
William H. Dietz Vice Chairperson
Gerry Evenwel Director
Jerry Romero Director
2. The officers of the Corporation (who are not Board members) are as follows:
Name Office
David Long President
Janie Taylor Executive Vice President
Melinda Smith Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Laura Ross Secretary
Cynthia Gonzales Assistant Secretary
All Board members were present except , thus constituting a quorum. All of the

officers of the Corporation (except the Secretary) were present at the meeting.

3. Whereupon, among other business, the following written resolution (the
“Resolution”) bearing the following caption:

“RESOLUTION NO. 18-__

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

APPROVAL OF LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO
$1,000,000 REVOLVING LOAN TO BE MADE BY
CORPORATION TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION OF BROWNSVILLE TO BE USE TO MAKE
SINGLE FAMILY LOANS PURSUANT TO ITS MICASITA
LOAN PROGRAM”



was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board and said caption was read in full. It was
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion and
request for comments, said motion carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and
carried by the following vote:

_ AYES _ NOES __ ABSTENTIONS

4. That a true, full and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the meeting
described in the above is attached to this certificate; that the adoption of the Resolution will be
duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of the meeting; that the persons named above are the duly
chosen, qualified and acting members of the Board and officers of the Corporation as indicated:;
that each member of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in
advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the Resolution would
be introduced and considered for adoption at said meeting.

SIGNED this 22nd day of March, 2018.

Laura Ross, Secretary
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation



RESOLUTION NO. 18-__

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

APPROVAL OF LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO $1,000,000
REVOLVING LOAN TO BE MADE BY CORPORATION TO
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION OF
BROWNSVILLE TO BE USE TO MAKE SINGLE FAMILY
LOANS PURSUANT TO ITS MICASITA LOAN PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) has
been duly created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Subchapter
Y (Section 2306.551 et. seq.) of Chapter 2306, Texas Government Code, as amended, and other
applicable provisions of Texas law (collectively, the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, under the Act, the Corporation is authorized to perform activities and
services that the Corporation’s Board of Directors determines will promote the public health,
safety, and welfare through the provision of adequate, safe, and sanitary housing primarily for
individuals and families of low, very low, and extremely low income, and such activities and
services shall include engaging in lending transactions; and

WHERAS, said activities and services include those permitted to be funded by the Texas
Housing Impact Fund (“THIF”), a fund established and maintained by the Corporation, which
include the provision of loans and lines of credit for the acquisition, rehabilitation and
construction of single family residences meeting the requirements of the THIF policies and rules;
and

WHEREAS, at the December 15, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors meeting, the
Board approved, by motion, the making of a loan to Community Development Corporation of
Brownsville (“CDCB”) in the maximum amount of $1,000,000, with the loan proceeds to be used
by CDCB to make loans to qualified borrowers under CDCB’s “MiCasita” loan program (the
“MiCasita Program”), in connection with the purchase and construction of single family homes in
the Texas counties of Cameron, Hidalgo and Willacy; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has been updated by Corporation staff with regard to
the status of the loan to CDCB and the use of loan proceeds for the MiCasita Program, and after
due discussion and consideration, has determined to affirm its approval of the loan to CDCB and
to authorize the President and the Executive Vice President to approve and execute all necessary
documentation to evidence such loan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION:

Section 1. Approval of Loan. The Board of Directors affirms its approval of a loan by
the Corporation to CDCB in the maximum amount of $1,000,000 (the “CDCB Loan”), the
proceeds of which are to be used by CDCB in making loans to eligible borrowers under its
MiCasita Program. The Board authorizes the President and the Vice President to approve, in
consultation with counsel, the form and substance of all necessary documents relating to the

-3-



CDCB Loan, including but not limited to a revolving loan agreement and related security
documents (collectively, the “Transaction Documents™).

Section 2. Execution and Delivery of Transaction Documents. The President and the
Executive Vice President are each, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, authorized by
the Board of Directors, to execute and deliver the Transaction Documents to which the
Corporation is a party, with such changes as the officer executing the same, in such officer’s sole
discretion, approves. Any such execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents, with any
such changes, by any such officer of the Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the same
have been approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Execution and Delivery of Ancillary Documents. The President and the
Executive Vice President are each, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, authorized by
the Board of Directors, at any time before or after the execution and delivery of the Transaction
Documents, to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all such orders, directions, certificates,
agreements, documents, instruments, amendments and other papers or items (collectively,
“Ancillary Documents”), and to do or cause to be done any and all such acts and things
(collectively, “Ancillary Actions”), which such officer, in such officer’s sole discretion and
judgment, deems necessary or desirable in connection with the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents, or as are otherwise authorized above. The execution
and delivery of any such Ancillary Documents and the taking of any such Ancillary Actions by
such officer of the Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the same have been approved by
the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Ratification of Prior Actions. All actions taken prior to the date of this
Resolution by any officer of the Corporation in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, with
respect to any of the matters and transactions described above, are ratified, confirmed and
approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Conflicting Prior Actions. Any order, resolution, approval or any action of
the Board of Directors in conflict with this Resolution is hereby repealed to the extent of any such
conflict.

Section 6. Severability. Any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of
this Resolution.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and
upon its adoption.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 22nd day of March, 2018.

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
CORPORATION

Chairperson
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

ATTEST:

Laura Ross, Secretary
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation



Tab 3



t S a h C 2018 Texas Foundations Fund Guidelines
March 2018
T E X A S

State Affordable Housing Corporation

Texas Foundations Fund Overview

Through its Texas Foundations Fund program, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC)
partners with nonprofit organizations across Texas to support housing services that meet critical housing
needs of very low-income households in Texas.

Matching Grant Structure

For the 2018 funding round, the Texas Foundations Fund will provide matching grants to eligible public
and private funds raised by selected partners (“Partners”). Public and private funds must have been
received by Partners on or after January 1, 2018 and must be earmarked specifically for the program for
which a matching grant from the Texas Foundations Fund is requested.

The following are eligible for matching grants:
¢ Individual donations
Foundation grants
Corporate grants or sponsorships
Government grants
In-kind donations of materials or professional services (volunteer labor does not qualify for
matching grants)

2018 Partner Application Process

Partners eligible for matching grants will be selected every two years through an online application
process. The online application will be available on TSAHC’s website at .tsahc. in April 2018. Interested
applicants should first complete an eligibility quiz to determine if they may qualify as a Partner. Only
organizations that pass the eligibility quiz will be instructed to complete the online application.

Partner applications must be submitted online no later than 5:00 pm on Friday, June 1, 2018. All
applicants meeting certain threshold requirements will qualify as Partners and will be eligible for matching
grants.

After submitting an application, applicants may not contact members of TSAHC’s Board of Directors
regarding their application. Failure to comply will result in the disqualification of the application.

If an application contains deficiencies that require clarification or correction, TSAHC staff will contact the
applicant directly to request clarification or correction of such deficiencies. Failure to respond to follow
up requests for information will result in the disqualification of an application.

Partner Threshold Requirements
To qualify as a Partner eligible for a matching grant, applicants must meet the following threshold
requirements:

1. Organization Type: Applicant must be a nonprofit organization with a 501(c)(3) designation
from the Internal Revenue Service.


http://www.tsahc.org/

2. Organization Experience: Applicant must have at least three years of experience operating
housing programs in Texas.

3. Program Experience: Applicant must have at least two years of experience operating the
program for which a matching grant will be requested (see section below for additional
program eligibility information).

4. Fundraising Experience: Applicant must provide a letter of reference or support from a
funder who has supported the program for which a matching grant will be requested.

5. Government Grant Performance: Applicant must certify that it has not defaulted on or
been required to repay any federal, state or local government grants within the past two
years. Applicants do not need to have prior experience with government grants to be eligible
for a matching grant.

6. Financial Requirements: Applicant must be able to provide annual financial audits for its
two most recent fiscal years (TSAHC will accept financial reviews in lieu of audits from
organizations with an annual operating budget of $750,000 or less) and must be prepared to
submit its audits, as well as other financial documents, when requested.

7. Household Requirements: To ensure the Texas Foundations Fund reaches those who are
most in need, each applicant must utilize matching funds to serve only :

a. Households at or below 50% of the area median family income (very low income)®, and
b. Households with a household member with a disability, and/or households located in a
rural community?.

Eligible Programs
Programs that provide the following housing services are eligible for a matching grant from the Texas
Foundations Fund:

1. The rehabilitation and/or critical repair of single family homes® to remedy unsafe living

conditions.

o Critical repairs may also include accessibility modifications for homes with a household
member with a disability.

e Homes receiving repairs must be owner-occupied.

e TSAHC will support the critical repair of single family rental homes owned and operated by
the organization applying only if the repairs enhance accessibility for a renting household with
an individual with a disability*

1 While an applicant’s program may serve households above this income level with other funding sources, a
matching grant from the Texas Foundations Fund may only be used to serve households meeting this income
requirement. TSAHC uses the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 income limits to
determine income eligibility for the Texas Foundations Fund program. To review the current income limits, visit:
www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html

2 TSAHC defines “rural” as a county that is outside a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), or a city or community
that is: 1) outside the boundaries of an MSA; or 2) within the boundaries of an MSA, if it has a population of 25,000
or less and does not share a boundary with an urban area (population larger than 25,000 within an MSA).

3 TSAHC defines “single family home” as a residential property with an attached or detached dwelling that consists
of (i) a single unit on an individual lot, or (ii) a single unit in a condo project, Planned Unit Development, or duplex,
triplex or fourplex, or (iii) not more than four connected units, with each unit intended as housing for one family.
Dwellings that are not titled as real estate, such as RVs and houseboats, are not eligible.

4 In exceptional circumstances, TSAHC may allow a Partner to perform critical repairs on a rental home owned by a
private landlord and occupied by a very low-income household. Partners must notify TSAHC in advance if they
wish to use a portion of their Texas Foundation Fund matching grant for this purpose. Additional information,
including documentation that the landlord is financially unable to perform the repairs, will be required.

2


http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html

o All rehabilitation and/or critical repairs funded through the Texas Foundations Fund must be
provided free of charge.

2. The provision of supportive housing services that help individuals and families at risk of
homelessness or unnecessary institutionalization gain and maintain their housing stability.
Eligible supportive housing services include, but are not limited to:

the provision of alcohol and drug counseling,

adult education and/or job training,

mental health counseling, and/or

case management or services provided by a health care provider.

Resident Services, such as afterschool tutoring programs and computer labs, are not considered
supportive housing services and will not be eligible for a matching grant. All supportive housing
services funded through the Texas Foundations Fund must be provided free of charge to residents.
Organizations that solely provide supportive services are not eligible for a matching grant. TSAHC
will only consider organizations that own and operate housing with supportive services made
available to the residents as a result of their occupancy.

2018 Funding Availability and Timeline

TSAHC provides the matching grants available through the Texas Foundations Fund by blending private
donations with earned revenue from its affordable housing programs. TSAHC’s Board of Directors
approves the funding available each year under the Texas Foundations Fund. While the total funding
available for 2018 has not yet been determined, it is anticipated that at least $300,000 will be available this
year. The funding available to each Partner will depend both on the total funding available as determined
by TSAHC’s Board of Directors and the number of Partners selected (estimated range $10,000-$30,000
per year, per Partner).

Please note that donors to the Texas Foundations Fund have the ability to request their funds be used
within a specific city or region; as a result,depending on Partners’ service area(s), the maximum amount of
funding available to each Partner may vary.

It is anticipated that Partners will be announced and matching grants will become available in September
2018. At that time, each Partner will have six months to access its matching grant. Any funds not accessed
during the initial six month period will be combined into a statewide pool and made available to other
Partners on a first-come, first-awarded basis until all funds are depleted. TSAHC reserves the right to limit
the total amount of funding available to each Partner from the statewide pool.

All previous Texas Foundations Fund awardees are eligible to apply to be selected as a Partner for the
2018 funding round, as long as they meet the Partner threshold requirements listed above and perfomed
according to the grant agreement of their most recent funding award.

Partner Term and Disbursement of Grants

Partners will be selected for a two-year term (“Partner Term”), with grant funding made available each
year. To access matching grants, Partners must submit a funding request form provided by TSAHC that
documents proof of public or private funds and proposed use of the matching grant. A Partner may submit
up to three funding requests during the initial six month period to access the full amount of its matching
grant.

A Partner must spend 100% of its matching grant and submit a report documenting use of the matching
grant and updated financial information by the end of the first year of the Partner Term before accessing
matching funds the following year.



Partner Agreement
Partners will be required to execute a partner agreement that outlines:
o adescription of the program for which the matching grant will be used,
eligible expenditures®,
the process to request matching grants,
reporting requirements, and
TSAHC’s right to inspect properties or service records and to review financial documents.

Failure to adhere to the terms of the partner agreement may result in the delay or cancelation of
matching grants, termination of the partner agreement, or request for repayment of all or part of
the matching grants disbursed.

Questions

Questions should be submitted in writing to Michael Wilt by email at @tsahc.. Applicants are highly
encouraged to review the Texas Foundations Fund’s Question and Answer section of TSAHC’s website
at .tsahc. for pertinent application information.

® Partners must use 100% of their matching grant for direct costs to provide the program for which the matching
grant is requested. These costs may include, but are not limited to, contractor fees, materials, salaries for staff
performing critical repair work, salaries for staff providing supportive housing services, salaries for staff directly
coordinating and supporting the program, travel expenses for staff directly coordinating and supporting the program,
and building permits and inspection fees for homes to be repaired. The partner agreement will include a full list of
expenses eligible for a matching grant.


mailto:mwilt@tsahc.org
http://www.tsahc.org/

Tab 4



t S a h ( Texas Community Capital
March 22, 2018

T E X A S

State Affordable Housing Corporatior

Agenda Item

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Texas Community Capital (TCC)’s Proposed Changes to
Bylaws Relating to Increase in Number of TSAHC-Appointed Board Members and Other Changes to Board
Composition.

Summary

Pursuant to discussions that were held by the Board at the February meeting of the Corporation, staff is
working with TACDC and TCC regarding next-steps to be taken by TCC to become a certified Community
Development Financial Institution (CDFI). As part of this process, the CDFI consultant has recommended to
TCC to make the various changes to the TCC by-laws, including the following:

1. Article lll, regarding the formation and makeup of the Board of Directors for TCC has been amended
to expand from five (5) Directors to a maximum of nine (9) Directors. The appointing agencies, Texas
Association of Community Development Corporations and Texas State Affordable Housing
Corporation, will each appoint three (3) Directors, or a total of six (6). The remaining three (3) at-large
Directors will be appointed by the combined TCC Directors.

Various other changes to the Bylaws are being proposed, including certain changes made to adhere to CDFI
certification standards.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board approve the changes to the Texas Community Capital Organizational By-
Laws, Article Ill, as presented above.



BY-LAWS OF TEXAS COMMUNITY CAPITAL, INC.

ARTICLE Il

Board of Directors

D) Powers

| The Board of Directors {“("Board of Directors™)") of this Corporation is vested with the management of
the business and affairs of this Corporation, subject to the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Articles
of Incorporation, and these Bylaws.

@ &
Qualifications

Participation as a member of the Board of Directors (a “"Director=}") shall not be denied to any person on
the basis of race, creed, sex, religion, or national origin.

No Director shall have the power to appoint any other member of the Board of Directors other than
| through the individual vote of that Director.

() I

Number of Directors

The Board of Directors will consist of no fewer than five {5}and no more than nine Directors. T No more
than three Directors shall be appointed and approved by-reselution-of the Board of Directors of the Texas State
Affordable Housing Corporation (“TSAHC Board”), a Texas non-profit corporation—Fwe _and no more than
three of the Directors shall be appointed byreselution-ofand approved the Board of Directors of the Texas
Association of Community Development Corporations (“TACDC Board”), a Texas non-profit corporation.
The TACDC Board, together with the TSAHC Board, are heretofore referred to as the “Appointing
Authorities” and each individually an “Appointing Authority”);—a—Fexas—non-profit—corperation—One
Direetor-. Up to three Directors shall be appointed by majority vote by the etheracting Directors of the Board
of-Directors. Upon majority resolution of the Board of Directors and approval by each of the TSAHC Board
and the TACDC Board, the number of Directors may be increased or decreased from time to time, but in no
event shall a decrease have the effect of shortening the term of an incumbent Director, or decreasing the total
number of Directors to less than three Directors. The persons serving as directors at the time of adoption of
this amendment to the Bylaws shall continue to serve until such time as their replacements have been named
and seated. The Executive Director of the Corporation_(if one is selected) shall serve as an ex-officio non-
voting member of the Board of Directors. All other employees of the Corporation are ineligible to serve on the
Board of Directors.

The Board, in consideration of this process, will consider geography, diversity, experience, and community
representation in appointing new board members.

4 Term and Election of Directors
Directors shall serve terms of four years:-hewevereach. Each Appointing Authority ramed-above-shall in
its-initial-appointments-name-one-stagger the terms of their appointed Director to-an-initial-term-oftwo
years—and—the—other—directorto—an—initialterm—of four—years—sosuch that each appointing authority
ﬁ#s appoints at Ieas one board vacaneymember every two years.—Fhe-Directorappointed-by-the Board-of

— Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in
the number of Directors shall be filled at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special
meeting called for that purpose pursuant to the revised Bylaws previously approved by each Appointing
Authority.

February 12, 2010 Page |1



Directors whose terms have expired may continue serving until they are either re-appointed or until their
successors are chosen. When a re-appointment erreplacement-is made; that term will be for the term
identified at re-appointment-e+-. When a Director is replaced the term of the replacement shatwill be
considered-effective-on-the date-that the term-expired-(i-e. the newremaining term does-net-begin-onof the
date-ofre-appointment-or-replacement)-Director being replaced.

Resignation

Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary or Chair of the Board of
Directors. Such resignation shall take effect upon receipt or at the time specified therein.

(N

Removal

Any Director may be removed witheutwith-cause, at any time, by a two-thirds majority of the entire Board of
Directors, at a regular or special meeting called for that purpose. For this purpose, "cause" for removal shall
be deemed to exist if a trustee willfully and materially breaches or habitually neglects his duties as a Director

of the Corporation, is grossly negligent in carrying out his duties as a Director, engages in fraud on the

Corporation, engages in any other act materially detrimental to the best interests of the Corporation, or is
convicted of a felony. Any director under consideration of removal must first be notified about the

consideration by written notice at least five days prior to the meeting at which the vote takes place.

(AN

Vacancies

Vacancies shall be filled by the respective Appointing Authority with respect to the Directors that they are
responsible to appoint. The Vacancy of the Director appointed by the Board of Directors shall be filled by the
Board of Directors.

|(§)_€99

Compensation

Directors shall not receive any salaries for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may be
compensated for any actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for the Corporation. The
corporation shall not make any loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director or

| officerOfficer,Officer; however this provision does not limit the Corporation’s ability to loan money or
property or otherwise guarantee an obligation to a lending entity of which the Director is an employee,
principle, or a Member of its board of directors.

.

February 12, 2010 Page |2



BY-LAWS OF TEXAS COMMUNITY CAPITAL, INC.
ARTICLE I

These Bylaws (the "Bylaws") constitute the code of rules adopted by the TEXAS COMMUNITY CAPITAL, INC.
for the regulation and management of its affairs.

ARTICLE II

Purpose

Texas Community Capital (the “Corporation”) shall exist for the purpose of providing loan and investment products,
development services and other related activities to residents of underserved communities either directly or through
community development financial institutions (CDFIs) and community development corporations (CDCs), and similar
community lenders in order to expand the availability of funds for affordable housing and other community
development investments. The mission of the Corporation is to promote economic and community development in low-
income communities. The Corporation shall be and is a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Texas. The
service area of the Corporation is the entire United States with a focus on low income and under-served Texas areas.

ARTICLE Il
Board of Directors

D) Powers
The Board of Directors ("Board of Directors") of this Corporation is vested with the management of the

business and affairs of this Corporation, subject to the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of
Incorporation, and these Bylaws.

2) Qualifications

Participation as a member of the Board of Directors (a "Director") shall not be denied to any person on
the basis of race, creed, sex, religion, or national origin.

No Director shall have the power to appoint any other member of the Board of Directors other than
through the individual vote of thatDirector.

?3) Number of Directors

The Board of Directors will consist of no fewer than five and no more than nine Directors. No more than
three Directors shall be appointed and approved by the Board of Directors of the Texas State Affordable
Housing Corporation (“TSAHC Board”), a Texas non-profit corporation and no more than three of the
Directors shall be appointed and approved the Board of Directors of the Texas Association of Community
Development Corporations (“TACDC Board™), a Texas non-profit corporation. The TACDC Board, together
with the TSAHC Board, are heretofore referred to as the “Appointing Authorities” and each individually an
“Appointing Authority. Up to three Directors shall be appointed by majority vote by the acting Directors of
the Board. Upon majority resolution of the Board of Directors and approval by each of the TSAHC Board and
the TACDC Board, the number of Directors may be increased or decreased from time to time, but in no event
shall a decrease have the effect of shortening the term of an incumbent Director, or decreasing the total number
of Directors to less than three Directors. The persons serving as directors at the time of adoption of this
amendment to the Bylaws shall continue to serve until such time as their replacements have been named and

February 12, 2010 Page |1



seated. The Executive Director of the Corporation (if one is selected) shall serve as an ex-officio non-voting
member of the Board of Directors. All other employees of the Corporation are ineligible to serve on the Board
of Directors.

The Board, in consideration of this process, will consider geography, diversity, experience, and community
representation in appointing new board members.

4) Term and Election of Directors

Directors shall serve terms of four years. Each Appointing Authority shall stagger the terms of their
appointed Director such that each appointing authority appoints at least one board member every two
years. Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors shall be filled at
the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special meeting called for that purpose pursuant
to the revised Bylaws previously approved by each Appointing Authority.

Directors whose terms have expired may continue serving until they are either re-appointed or until their
successors are chosen. When a re-appointment is made that term will be for the term identified at re-
appointment. When a Director is replaced the term of the replacement will be the remaining term of the
Director being replaced.

(5) Resignation

Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary or Chair of the Board of
Directors. Such resignation shall take effect upon receipt or at the time specified therein.

(6) Removal

Any Director may be removed with-cause, at any time, by a two-thirds majority of the entire Board of
Directors, at a regular or special meeting called for that purpose. For this purpose, "cause"” for removal shall
be deemed to exist if a trustee willfully and materially breaches or habitually neglects his duties as a Director
of the Corporation, is grossly negligent in carrying out his duties as a Director, engages in fraud on the
Corporation, engages in any other act materially detrimental to the best interests of the Corporation, or is
convicted of a felony. Any director under consideration of removal must first be notified about the
consideration by written notice at least five days prior to the meeting at which the vote takes place.

@) Vacancies

Vacancies shall be filled by the respective Appointing Authority with respect to the Directors that they are
responsible to appoint. The Vacancy of the Director appointed by the Board of Directors shall be filled by the
Board of Directors.

(8) Compensation

Directors shall not receive any salaries for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may be
compensated for any actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for the Corporation. The
Corporation shall not make any loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director or
Officer; however this provision does not limit the Corporation’s ability to loan money or property or otherwise
guarantee an obligation to a lending entity of which the Director is an employee, principle, or a Member of its
board of directors.

February 12, 2010 Page |2



ARTICLE IV
Committees

Q) Standing Committees

The Board of Directors may from time to time designate and appoint standing or temporary committees by
majority vote of the Board of Directors. Such committees shall have and exercise such prescribed authority as
is designated by the Board of Directors. The Board Chair of the Board of Directors (the Board Chair”) shall
appoint the Chair of any such committee. The Directors may authorize these committees to exercise any
powers, responsibilities, and duties consistent with the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws.

ARTICLE V
Advisory Board

The Board of Directors may provide a formal process for community development leaders and representatives of low-
income communities to advise the Corporation on its decisions regarding the Corporation’s programs, loans,
investments, development services (technical assistance) and capital development through the creation of Advisory
Boards. The Board of Directors may appoint Advisory Members from lenders eligible to receive loans and investments
from the Corporation; from financial institutions, corporations or foundations which have made capital available to the
Corporation in the form of grants, loans or investments; from local, state and national organizations dedicated to the
field of community development, or may appoint other individuals from the community. An Advisory Board may meet
in person or by electronic means.

The responsibilities of an Advisory Board will be determined by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI
Code of Ethics

It is imperative to the success of the Corporation that there be a fully informed, responsive, and reasonable Board of
Directors. To accomplish this end, all Directors shall conduct themselves at all times in the best interest of the
Corporation. In this regard, each Director shall abide by the following "Code of Ethics." While no code or set of rules
can be framed which will particularize all the duties of a Director, the following code of ethics shall serve as a general
guide. The enumeration of particular duties should not be construed as a denial of the existence of others equally
imperative, though not specifically mentioned.

1) Directors shall put forth their best effort to attend all meetings and constructively participate in the meetings.
2) Directors shall be responsible for insuring that adequate and correct information is presented to public.
3) Directors shall exercise good judgment in the control and use of confidential information that may from time

to time come into their possession. No Director shall use confidential information gained by reason of being a
Director for personal gain to the detriment of the Corporation.

4 Each Director shall serve as a public relations agent for the Corporation and therefore shall work diligently and
properly to promote its goals and objectives while keeping abreast with its overall progress.

February 12, 2010 Page |3



®)

@)

@)

®)

4)

®)

(6)

Conflict of Interest and Nepotism: Directors shall fully comply with the Conflict of Interest Policy adopted by
the TCC Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII

Board Meetings

Place of Board Meetings

Meetings of the Board of Directors, regular or special, will be held in person or by electronic means at a place
designated by the Board Chair.

Regular and Special Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held each quarter, or more frequently as deemed necessary
by the Board of Directors. The Board Chair or any five Directors may call special Meetings.

Notice of Board Meetings

Notice of the date, time, and place of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each
irector by regular mail, telephone (including voice mail), facsimile, or electronic e-mail no less than five
business days prior to the meeting. Notice of the date, time, and place of special meetings shall be given to
each Director by telephone (including voice mail), facsimile, or electronic e-mail, no less than twenty-four
hours prior to the meeting, with the exception of special meetings held to amend the Articles of Incorporation
or these Bylaws, for which a five-day written notice by mail or facsimile shall be required.

Waiver of Notice

Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board of Directors will constitute a waiver of notice of such
meeting except where such Director attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting at the beginning
of the meeting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Quorum

A majority of the incumbent Directors (not counting vacancies) shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of
business. At meetings of the Board of Directors where a quorum is present, a majority vote of the Directors
attending shall constitute an act of the Board of Directors unless a greater number is required by the Articles of
Incorporation or by any provision of these Bylaws.

Actions without a Meeting

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors under the Texas Non-Profit
Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws may be taken without a meeting, if all
Directors individually and collectively consent in writing, setting forth the action to be taken. Such unanimous
written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors.

February 12, 2010 Page |4



ARTICLE VI
Officers
Q) Roster of Officers

The Corporation shall have a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer. The Corporation may have, at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, such other officers as may be appointed by the Directors. One person
may hold two or more offices, except that the office of President and Secretary must be held by different
people.

2 Selection and Removal of Officers

All officers shall serve one year terms. The election shall be conducted at the regularly scheduled Board of
Directors meeting held in the first quarter of each year and following the election of the new Directors filling
expired terms, or as soon as practical thereafter. Officers shall remain in office until their successors have
been selected. Officers may serve two consecutive terms before replacement. The election of officers shall be
by majority vote of the Directors attending the meeting at which a quorum is present.

3) Vacancies

If a vacancy occurs during the term of office for any elected officer, the Board of Directors shall fill the
vacancy as soon as practical by appointing a new officer by majority vote of Directors present at which a
quorum is present.

4 Chair

The Chair will supervise and control the affairs of the Corporation and shall exercise such supervisory powers
as may be given him or her by the Board of Directors.

The Chair will perform all duties incident to such office and such other duties as may be provided in these
bylaws or as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Chair shall preside at all
meetings of the Board of Directors and shall exercise parliamentary control.

The Chair shall serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, unless otherwise provided by the
Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

The Chair shall, with the advice of the Board of Directors and in accordance with the requirements of these
Bylaws, set and cause the secretary to give notice of the agenda for each meeting of the Board of Directors.

(5) Vice Chair

The Vice Chair shall act in place of the Chair in the event of the chair's absence, inability, or refusal to act, and
shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the Board of Directors. The Vice Chair
shall serve as the parliamentarian and interpret any ambiguities of the Bylaws.

(6) Secretary

The Secretary will perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be
required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws.

The Secretary shall attest to and keep the Bylaws and other legal records of the Corporation, or copies thereof,
at the principal office of the Corporation.

February 12, 2010 Page |5



U]

The Secretary shall take or ensure that someone takes minutes of all meetings of the committees, Board of
Directors, and members, and shall keep copies of all minutes at the principal office of the Corporation.

The Secretary shall keep a record of the names and addresses of the Directors and members at the principal office
of the Corporation.

The Secretary shall, with the approval of the Board of Directors, set up procedures for any elections held by the
Corporation. The Secretary shall keep a record of all votes cast in such elections.

The Secretary shall ensure that all records of the Corporation, minutes of all official meetings, and records of all
votes, are made available for inspection by any member of the Board of Directors at the principal office of the
Corporation during regular business hours.

The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these Bylaws or as required by law.

The Secretary shall see that all books, reports, statements, certificates, and other documents and records of the
Corporation are properly kept and filed.

In the case of the absence or disability of the Secretary, or the Secretary's refusal or neglect to fulfill the duties of
Secretary, the Vice Chair shall perform the functions of the Secretary.

Treasurer

The Treasurer will have charge and custody of all funds of the Corporation, will oversee and supervise the
financial business of the Corporation, will render reports and accountings to the Directors as required by the
Board of Directors, and will perform in general all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties
as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned from
time to time by the Board of Directors.

The Treasurer and the staff of the Corporation shall devise a plan providing for the acceptance and disbursement
of all funds of the Corporation, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall set up all checking, savings, and investment
accounts of the Corporation and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in such accounts.

The Treasurer's signature shall be one of the two authorized signatures for all checking, savings and investment
accounts of the Corporation. The signature of the Corporation’s Executive Director will be the other authorized
signature for all checking, savings and investment accounts of the Corporation.

The Treasurer shall render to the Chair and the Board of Directors, upon request, an accounting of all
transactions and of the financial conditions of the Corporation.

The Treasurer shall keep all financing records, books, and annual reports of the financial activities of the
Corporation at the principal office of the Corporation and make them available at the request of any Director or
member of the public during regular business hours for inspection and copying.

February 12, 2010 Page |6



ARTICLE IX

Rules of Procedure

The proceedings and business of the Board of Directors shall be governed by following parliamentary
procedures.

ARTICLE X
Executive Director

The Board of Directors may, upon resolution, appoint an Executive Director to serve at the discretion of the
Board of Directors and to carry out whatever tasks the Board of Directors from time to time resolves. The
Executive Director shall be paid an annual salary set by the Board of Directors. Subject to such supervisory
powers as are vested in the Board of Directors, the Executive Director shall supervise, direct, and control the
business of the Corporation and actively manage its business, and shall have such other powers and duties as may
be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws.

The Executive Director may engage in negotiations involving commitments of the resources of the Corporation
or the acceptance of money or resources by the Corporation in furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation as
set out in the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws.

The Executive Director shall generally be expected to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and meetings
of all Advisory Boards.

ARTICLE XI
Indemnification

The Corporation will provide indemnification insurance for its Directors at such time that the Corporation begins
implementation of its lending and investment programs, and the Board of Directors shall select the amount and
limits of such insurance policy.

To the extent permitted by law, any person (and the heirs, executors, and administrators of such person) made or
threatened to be made a party to any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a Director
or Officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation against any and all liability and the
reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees and disbursements, incurred by him (or by his heirs, executors or
administrators) in connection with the defense or settlement of such action, suit, or proceeding, or in
connection with any appearance therein, except in instances where the person failed to act in good faith and for
a purpose which he or she reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Corporation, the person had
reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful, or the person shall be adjudged to be liable for
misconduct or negligence in the performance of a duty.

February 12, 2010 Page |7



1)

@)

®)

4)

©)

(6)

ARTICLE XII
Operations

Execution of Documents

Unless specifically authorized by the Board of Directors or as otherwise required by law, all final contracts,
deeds, conveyances, leases, promissory notes, or legal written instruments executed in the name of and on
behalf of the Corporation shall be signed and executed by the Executive Director or the Chair/Vice Chair (or
such other person designated by the Board of Directors), pursuant to the general authorization of the Board.
Financial Transactions, including loans and investments made by the Corporation shall require majority
approval of the Board of Directors unless such approval is delegated by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Records

The Corporation will keep correct and complete records of account and will also keep minutes of the
proceeding of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees. The Corporation will keep at its
principal place of business the original or a copy of the Bylaws, including amendments to date certified by the
Secretary of the Corporation.

Inspection of Books and Records

All books and records of this Corporation may be inspected by any Director and each Appointing Authority for
any purpose at any reasonable time on written demand.

Amendments

The Board of Directors may adopt Articles of Amendment (amending the Articles of Incorporation) by a vote
of two-thirds of Directors present at a meeting where a quorum is present. Articles of Amendment must be
adopted in accordance with Texas law. These Bylaws may be amended at any time by a vote of the majority
of Directors at a meeting where a quorum is present; provided, however, that an amendment to any of Article
111 hereof must also be approved by each Appointing Authority to become effective.

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year for the Corporation will be the calendar year, January 1 to December 31.

Audit

The Corporation shall have an annual audit to be completed by June 30 of each year for the previous fiscal
year by a certified public accountant.

CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that these Bylaws were adopted by the Board of Directors of Texas Community Capital, Inc. at
its meeting held on and were also approved by each Appointing Authority.

Secretary

February 12, 2010 Page |8



Tab 5



tS a h C Critical Repair Funding Guidelines
Housing and Economic Assistance to
T E X A S Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program

State Affordable Housing Corporatior

Program Overview

The Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC) has partnered with Enterprise
Community Partners and the Rebuild Texas Fund to create the Housing and Economic Assistance
to Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program, a program that awards grants of up to $50,000 to nonprofits
providing critical home repairs and other housing assistance to families displaced or otherwise
affected by Hurricane Harvey.

In addition to grant funding, the program also provides direct technical assistance to grantees to
help them build capacity and scale their programs to assist more Texas families.

Funding for Critical Home Repairs

A total of $350,000 in initial funding is available for critical home repairs under the HEART
Program. This includes an initial $250,000 grant from the Rebuild Texas Fund as well as a
$100,000 commitment from TSAHC’s Board of Directors.

The Rebuild Texas Fund has also committed additional funding as matching funds, which may
become available once the initial funds are expended. TSAHC and Enterprise Community
Partners will continue to seek additional funds to increase the funding available under the
program.

Eligibility Requirements
To qualify for critical repair grant funding, applicants must meet the following requirements:

1. Organization Type: Applicant must be a nonprofit organization with a 501(c)(3)
designation from the Internal Revenue Service; a government entity serving one or
more rural counties, cities and/or communitiesl; a church; or a religious organization.

2. Experience Requirements: Applicant must have a successful track record of providing
housing-related services for at least two years.

3. Financial Requirements: Applicant must be able to provide annual financial audits for its
two most recent fiscal years (TSAHC will accept financial reviews in lieu of audits from
organizations with an annual operating budget of $750,000 or less) and must be
prepared to submit its audits, as well as other financial documents, when requested.

4. Household Requirements: To ensure the HEART program reaches those who are most
in need, each applicant must use critical repair funds only for critical home repairs? of

L TSAHC defines “rural” as a county that is outside a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), or a city or
community that is: 1) outside the boundaries of an MSA; or 2) within the boundaries of an MSA, if it has a
population of 25,000 or less and does not share a boundary with an urban area (population larger than
25,000 within an MSA).

2 TSAHC defines critical repairs as repairs to a failed system, including electrical, roofing
repairs/replacements, structural damage, plumbing, mechanical systems, and heating and air conditioning.



single-family homes® to households at or below 80% of the area median family income
(low income)®. Homes receiving repairs must be owner-occupied.

Geographic Requirements: Applicant must provide critical repairs to hurricane-
damaged homes located in counties eligible for individual assistance as part of the
Federal Emergency Management Agency’s federal disaster declaration. A map of the
counties included in the federal disaster declaration is included as an attachment to
these guidelines. The number of grants and funding available to Harris, Montgomery
and/or Waller County are limited to no more than half the total amount of critical repair
grants and funding available.

Administration

1.
2.

Applications will be accepted on a rolling basis as long as funding is available.

Interested applicants must submit an introductory pre-proposal describing their
proposed program and technical assistance needs.

After reviewing each pre-proposal for program eligibility, TSAHC, Enterprise Community
Partners and the Rebuild Texas Fund will determine if the applicant is a good fit for the
program and if so, direct the applicant to submit a full proposal.

The maximum grant per applicant is $50,000, and the maximum grant per household is
$10,000.

Grantees will receive funding as a lump sum award. In certain circumstances, TSAHC
may disperse critical repair funds in one or more installment(s).

Grantees must spend 100% of their award and complete all activities proposed in their
application within one year of signing their grant agreement.

Grantees will be required to provide income certifications for all households assisted
with critical repairs.

Grantees will be required to provide evidence that the housing receiving critical repairs
was damaged by Hurricane Harvey. Evidence may include proof of application to the
Federal Emergency Management Agency, Insurance Claim Statements, or property
assessment form completed by another entity. Grantees must also provide
documentation demonstrating that the repairs were not funded through federal funds,
an insurance claim, or another funding source.

Funding for additional disaster-related housing services will be made available by
Enterprise Community Partners as part of this partnership. While applicants with a
501(c)(3) designation may apply for both funding types, the total available to each
organization is capped at $50,000. Applicants do not need to submit a separate
application for each funding type.

Critical repairs must be vital to the health and safety of the occupants and meet state and local building

codes.

¥ TSAHC defines “single family home” as a residential property with an attached or detached dwelling that
consists of (i) a single unit on an individual lot, or (ii) a single unit in a condo project, Planned Unit
Development, or duplex, triplex or fourplex, or (iii) not more than four connected units, with each unit
intended as housing for one family. Dwellings that are not titled as real estate, such as RVs and houseboats,
are not eligible.

* TSAHC uses the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 income limits to
determine income eligibility for the HEART program. To review the current income limits, visit:
www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html



http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html

Grant Agreement
Grantees will be required to execute a grant agreement that outlines:
e adescription of how the grant will be used,
e eligible expenditures®,
e reporting requirements, and
e TSAHC's right to inspect properties or service records and to review financial documents.

Failure to adhere to the terms of the grant agreement may result in the delay or cancelation of
grants, termination of the agreement, or request for repayment of all or part of the grants
disbursed.

Questions

Questions should be submitted in writing to Michael Wilt by email at @tsahc.. Applicants are
highly encouraged to review the HEART Program Question and Answer section of TSAHC's
website at .tsahc. for pertinent application information.

® Grantees must use 100% of their grant for direct costs for critical home repairs. These costs may include,
but are not limited to, contractor fees, materials, salaries for staff performing critical repair work, and
building permits and inspection fees for homes to be repaired. The grant agreement will include a full list of
expenses eligible for a grant.


mailto:mwilt@tsahc.org
http://www.tsahc.org/

FEMA-4332-DR, Texas Disaster Declaration as of 10/11/2017

Dallam

Sherrrllan L
Hansford!

Ochiltree
ipscomb

Hartley

Moore

Roberts
Hutchinson

Oldham

Potter

Hemphill

Gray
Carson—

Deaf
Smith

Il{andal,

Donley

NM

Parmer I’Castrol

Bailey

Lamb

Swisher—Motley-
Hale |Floyd

ArmStrong —Icpi s

Wheeler

Collingsworth

V\"ilbafgérv\

MO

OK

Wichi

Hockle:

Lubbock
Crosby

Knox

Archer

Cochran
Yoakum

Terry

Dickens

Garza! Kent

Lynn

Stonewall

Gaines

Dawson

Scurry

Borden

Fisher.

Jones

Baylor-

Thr.ockmolrt on
Shackellford

cnion

Wise I

Young

Parker Dallas
Tarrant Kauf

Pinto

ith Gregg.

Andrews

Martin

Mi{chell
Howard

Nolan

Taylor

Callahan

Winkler
El Pasol \Loving— \'
Culberson| = 5 Ector

fidland

Sterling Coke

Q

Ward
Reeves

Hudspeth

Cr:

Upton

ne

Runnels

Coleman

Glasscock [0

Reagan Liztom

Green

Jeft Davis Pecos

Terrell

Presidio
Brewster

Crockett

Schleicher

Sutton

Kimble

Val Verde

Eastland] 11004 _Johnson Ellis %

/{Erath '

N Rusk
erson
E\Iaco gdoches
Cherokee

Panola

“Mc€ulloch

Kinney

Uvalde

Maverick

Zavala

Dimmit

Hidalgo

Cameron

AR

Data Layer/Map Description:
The types of assistance that have
been designated for selected
areas in the State of Texas.

All designated areas in the State
of Texas are eligible to apply
for assistance under the Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program.

Designated Counties

Individual Assistance and
Public Assistance

Public Assistance (Category
B)

Individual Assistance and

- Public Assistance (Categories
A and B)

Individual Assistance and
Public Assistance (Categories
A-G)

0 40 80 120
I I

160
1Miles

Data Sources:

FEMA, ESRI;

Initial Declaration: 08/25/2017
Disaster Federal Registry Notice:
Amendment #10 - 10/11/2017
Datum: North American 1983
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic

MaplD ead96c4eeef1011171451hgprod




Tab 6



MINUTES AND CERTIFICATION

THE STATE OF TEXAS

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE
HOUSING CORPORATION

wn W W W

I, the undersigned officer of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the
“Corporation”), do hereby certify as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) convened on the day of
March, 2018, at the designated meeting place in Austin, Texas, and the roll was called of the
duly constituted members of said Board and officers, to wit:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Office
Robert Elliott Jones Chairperson
William H. Dietz Vice Chairperson
Jerry Romero Director
Gerry Evenwel Director
Vacant Director
OFFICERS
Name Office
David Long President (non-Board member)
Janie Taylor Executive Vice President (non-Board member)
Melinda Smith Chief Financial Officer (non-Board member)
Laura Ross Secretary (non-Board member)
Cynthia Gonzales Assistant Secretary (non-Board member)

and all of said members of the Board of Directors were present except
, thus constituting a quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the
following was transacted, to-wit: a written resolution (the “Resolution”) bearing the following
caption:

RESOLUTION NO. 18-__

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

“A Resolution to Restate, Ratify, and Affirm the Officers of the
Corporation, Appoint the person to Fill the Position of Corporate
Secretary, and Designate and Restate the Signature and Approval
Authority of Officers of the Corporation.”



was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and read in full. It was then duly moved
and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, the motion carrying with
it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and passed by the following vote:

AYES NOES ABSTENTIONS

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution [as modified to
reflect discussion by said Board] adopted at the meeting described in the above and foregoing
paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that said Resolution has been duly recorded
in said Board’s minutes of said meeting; that the above and foregoing paragraph is a true, full
and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said meeting pertaining to the adoption of said
Resolution; that the persons named in the above and foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen,
qualified officers of the Corporation and members of said Board as indicated therein; that each of
the officers and members of said Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and
personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that said
Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at said meeting, and each of said
officers and members of said Board consented, in advance, to the holding of said meeting for
such purpose.

SIGNED this day of March, 2018.

Secretary, Texas State Affordable Housing
Corporation



RESOLUTION NUMBER 18-__

BOARD RESOLUTION
OF
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

RESOLUTION TO RESTATE, RATIFY, AND AFFIRM THE OFFICERS OF THE
CORPORATION, APPOINT A PERSON TO FILL THE POSITION OF EXECUTIVE
VICE PRESIDENT, AND TO DESIGNATE AND RESTATE THE SIGNATURE AND

APPROVAL AUTHORITY FOR OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION

WHEREAS, Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) has been
duly created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Non-
Profit Corporation Act, Article 1396-1.01 et. seqg., now codified as the Texas Business
Organizations Code, Chapter 22 as amended, and under the authority of Texas Government
Code, Title 10, Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y, as amended; and

WHEREAS, Laura Ross has accepted a new position at the Corporation and will no
longer serve as Secretary of the Corporation effective March 22, 2018; and

WHEREAS, upon the recommendation of Mr. David Long, President of the
Corporation, the Corporation has selected Ms. Lacy Brown to assume the position of Secretary
of the Corporation, effective March 22, 2018; and

WHEREAS, effective implementation and execution of the Corporation’s programs,
operations and various task forces require that persons employed by the Corporation as Officers
be empowered to approve and execute documents pursuant to the authority given such Officers
as provided in the relevant resolutions passed or to be passed by the Board with respect to the
Corporation’s programs, operations and various task forces;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION THAT:

RESOLVED, that upon Laura Ross accepting a new position at the Corporation, the
Board hereby ratifies, affirms, appoints, and restates, the following persons as the officers of the
Corporation:

President David Long
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Melinda Smith
Executive Vice President Janie Taylor
Secretary Lacy Brown
Assistant Secretary Cynthia Gonzales

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes David Long, as President of the
Corporation, to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all documents or
instruments necessary to carry out his functions as President, including without limitation, any
and all documents and instruments relating to the Corporation’s programs (including bond
administration), operations and task forces.



RESOLVED, that he Board hereby authorizes Janie Taylor, as Executive Vice President
of the Corporation, to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all documents
or instruments necessary to carry out her functions as Executive Vice President.

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes Melinda Smith, as Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of the Corporation, to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation,
any and all documents or instruments necessary to carry out her functions as Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer.

RESOLVED, that effective March 22, 2018, the Board hereby authorizes Lacy Brown,
as Secretary of the Corporation, and Cynthia Gonzales as Assistant Secretary of the Corporation,
to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all documents or instruments
necessary to carry out their respective functions as Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the
Corporation.

Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date
of its adoption.

ALL MATTERS ABOVE ARE APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 22nd day of
MARCH, 2018.

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

ATTEST:

Laura Ross
Secretary of the Corporation



Tab 7



Tab 7

Closed Executive Session —
Discuss real estate matters related to the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of
real property located at 112 Sanford Drive, Leander Texas (Real Estate Matters
Section 551.072 Texas Government Code)



Tab 8



Tab 8

Closed Executive Session —
Discuss legal issues related to mortgage transaction matters with Mortgage
Financial Services Company. (Private Consultation with Legal Counsel — Section
551.071 Texas Government Code)



	Cover 
	Agenda 
	Presidents Report
	Tab A
	Tab B
	Tab C
	Tab D 

	Tab 1 
	Tab 2 
	Tab 3 
	Tab 4 
	Tab 5
	Tab 6 
	Tab 7 
	Tab 8 



